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THE war to protect civil liber-

ties—your civil liberties—is never-ending. As the central 

figure in one of the newest and fiercest battles of that 

war there is a man who has come to be known by the 

all-disguising name of "Mr. Blank." 

He is a real man. He is not a character in a weird 

novel or a bad dream. He is so real, in fact, that he could 

be you or me, and the things that happened to him—and 

are still happening to him—could befall you or me. 
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WASHINGTON WITCH HUNT 

This begins, then, as the story of Mr. Blank. 

But it is a story of many ramifications. 

. . . of how Mr. Blank was discharged from the Di 

partment of State of the United States of America as 

potential security risk" without ever being informed of 

the nature of the charges against him and without ever 

being confronted by his accusers. 

. . . of how a witch hunt, once it begins, can strike at 

anyone, no matter how innocent he might be. 

. . of the incident that made me angry enough about 

Mr. Blank's case to want to do something about it, not 

only for the sake of Mr. Blank but also for your sake 

and for my sake. 
. . . of how the greatest of the bureaucratic agenci( 

of the mightiest government in the world was made to 

back down when the cold, bare facts were exposed t 

public view. 
But there is much more to it than the mere case hi! 

tory of one individual. 
For the study lof this case history leads directly into 

consideration of the larger factors involved; the facto, 

that explain why the Department of State and other gm 

ernment agencies "got this way" during the aftermath o 

World War II. 
It leads to consideration- 
. . . of the part played by J. Edgar Hoover and th 

Federal Bureau of Investigation, which he heads. 

. . . of the case of Ring Lardner, Jr., and othe 
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Hollywood figures who were cited for contempt by the 

House Committee on Un-American Activities. 
. . . of the case of veiled charges and innuendoes 

against Dr. Edward U. Condon, Director of the Bureau 

of Standards. 
. . . of the strange professions of loyalty to the 

United States made by William Z. Foster, chairman of 

the Communist party, U. S. A. 
. . . of how those professions stacked up when com-

pared with statements made by Josef Stalin, Viacheslav 

Molotov and Andrei A. Zhdanov, the Russian leaders. 
Then, reverting to Mr. Blank, there are the additional 

accounts- 
. . . of what can be accomplished against a witch 

hunt when the triple-throated voice of the people and 

the press and the radio join in shouting: "This is wrong!" 
. . . of the troubles that beset a man who goes 

job-hunting with the words "potential security risk" 

plastered on his name and reputation, even though the 

triple-throated cry has led to a correction of the general 
situation. 

. . . of the worries that beset a man who blandly par-

ticipated in the "no-hearing" case of Mr. Blank when 

he, himself, was thrust into a situation where he very 

much wanted a hearing. 

There were four men present in a State Department 

room on the morning of November I, 1947. 
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WASHINGTON WITCH HUNT 

Three were State Department officials. 
One was this reporter. 
The case of Mr. Blank was being discussed. 
The talk revolved generally around the ethics and 

decency and fairness of dismissing any individual with-

out letting him in on the secret of who accused him of 

what, and without granting him the right of appeal. 

There wasn't any argument about whether the State 

Department had the right to do all this. 
It definitely had the right by act of Congress. 
The argument was whether it was the American way 

of proceeding. 
Finally, weary of the talk, one of the State Depart-

ment men said words that shocked the reporter. There 

were no stenographers present, so there is no exact rec-

ord. But this was the sense of what he said: 
"Why beat around the bush on a matter like this? It 

is entirely conceivable that. any one of us in this room 
could be made the victim of a complete frame-up, if he 

had enough enemies in the Department who were out 

to get him." (He was talking about himself and the 

other two State Department men.) 
"Yes," he continued, "such a thing would be perfectly 

conceivable. And we would not have any more recourse 

than Mr. Blank, even though we were entirely innocent." 
The reporter was astonished, and a bit frightened. 
"What did you say?" the reporter asked, coming 

down hard on the word "what." 
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THE HUNTERS AND THE HUNTED 

The State Department man repeated his statement. 

The reporter said words that amounted to these: 

"If a man of your intelligence can say a thing like that 

without being shocked at what you are saying and with-

out a feeling of personal peril, then something is wrong. 

And it's high time the story of Mr. Blank was told to the 

people of the United States to let them decide what was 

done right and what was done wrong in his case." 

The postwar climate was not new. An earlier hunt had 

begun in the same atmosphere more than a quarter of a 

century ago. It was history repeating itself—without re-

gard for past lessons. 
Men old enough to remember, students of history, 

fathers and mothers of today's government workers saw 

the new open season develop just as it had after World 

War I. Then, though, it was first the executive branch 

which felt compelled to clean house. Now it was the 

legislative demanding scalps of the executive. 

One needed to turn back the pages of history but a 

quarter of a century to appreciate the danger. In the 

Wilson era the administration persisted in exercising 

stringent controls over private thinking, though any 

justification for it had ended with the armistice. 

Woodrow Wilson's Postmaster General, Albert S. 

Burleson, continued to keep a rigid but no longer justified 

watch over the press and the mails. With similar presi-

dential blessing, the Attorney General, A. Mitchell 
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Palmer, launched a one-man crusade against "Reds." 
Arrests on mere suspicion were wholesale. Entrapment 
was encouraged. "Seditious meetings" were provoked 
and aliens were rounded up for deportation. Congress 
considered new and more drastic sedition laws. 

When the pendulum had swung too far, as it was do-
ing now, vehement protests arose from everyone who 
knew what was at stake. 

Charles Evans Hughes, concerned for constitutional 
rights, spoke up before the Harvard Law alumni. 

"We may well wonder, in view of the precedents now 
established," the former Supreme Court Justice said 
gravely, "whether constitutional government as hereto-
fore maintained in this republic could survive another 
great war even victoriously waged." 

Now, that other great war had been victoriously 
waged. The period of Justice Hughes' fears had arrived. 
Twelve years of liberal government under Franklin 
Delano Roosevelt had given rise to recurrent and con-
tinuing charges that the Federal establishment was perme-
ated with "Communists, pink Socialists, and fellow trav-
elers." The charges had been generally discounted and 
brushed aside by the American public. 

But public confidence waned with the collapse of the 
illusive wartime friendship between Soviet Russia and 
the Western Democracies. With the renewed war of the 
ideologies, with American capitalism the principal target 
of Russian communism, the possible presence of Corn- 
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munists and fellow travelers in government took on new 

and seemingly sinister importance. 
Then the first climax came: A Canadian Royal Com-

mission, during the summer of 1946, disclosed that a 

Soviet spy ring, its agents camouflaged as diplomats, had 

worked hand in fist with leftists in the Canadian govern-

ment to pry out atomic secrets shared by Canada and the 

United States. 
The floodgates were open. With a burst of indigna-

tion, members of Congress demanded effective measures 

to guard government offices against infiltration by ad-

herents of foreign ideologies. A Gallup poll, published 

August 25, 1946, indicated wide support of proposals to 

bar Communists from Federal offices. The question was 

how. 
Congressmen recalled that Patrick J. Hurley had 

resigned the preceding November as United States 

Ambassador to China with a blast charging that the 

President's policy in Asia was being sabotaged by for-

eign-service career men in Washington and at the Em-

bassy in Chungking. The saboteurs, General Hurley said, 

sided with "the Chinese Communist armed party" and, 

paradoxically, with "the imperialist bloc of nations," 

which he identified as Great Britain, the Netherlands 

and France. 
Hurley's broadside took on new meaning now. The 

House Un-American Activities Committee went to 

work with increased vigor;  the House Post Office and 
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Civil Service Committee became restive; conservatives 

in the Senate Foreign Relations and Appropriations 

Committees became alarmed. Their principal concern 
was the State Department, but they agreed that all offices 

of government had to be purged. 
Conflicting stories of State Department vigilance were 

heard in the House. Representative Edward Eugene Cox, 

Democrat, of Georgia, reported that the Department 

had been "exerting itself to the limit" to eliminate unde-

sirable employees. He said that a security committee, 

established within the Department, had purged "hun-

dreds of people and they are going out daily." 
Representative Bartel J. Jonkman, Republican, of 

Michigan, had a different version. He said that Dean 

Acheson, Under Secretary of State, had informed him 
that recent wholesale dismissals had been due solely to 

reasons of economy. Referring to lists of permanent em-

ployees suspected of disloyalty, which had been for-

warded to the Department from various sources, Ache-

son had told Jonkman that "accusations against but one 
employee have been substantiated and this person has 

been discharged." 
That summer—r946—James F. Byrnes, then Secretary 

of State, went before the Appropriations Committees to 

press the Department's budget requests for the next fiscal 

year. He was caught between a crossfire of inquiries on 
the extent of the Department's purge of disloyal em-
ployees. It had gone no further, he explained, than the 
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civil-service law permitted. If it was the consensus of 
Congress that the Department should have a freer hand, 
Congress should say so. 

Congress did. It said it in a special rider to the State 
Department's appropriation bill. The provision came to 
be known as the McCarran rider because its author was 
Senator Pat McCarran, Democrat, of Nevada, chairman 
of the sub-committee which handled the supply measure. 
The rider permitted summary discharge of any State 
Department employee by the Secretary "in his absolute 
discretion . . . whenever he shall deem such termina-
tion necessary or advisable in the interests of the United 
States." 

Similar arbitrary power of dismissal had been granted 
the Navy and War Departments in World War II legis-
lation, and later to the hypersensitive Atomic Energy 
Commission. The new provision, which remains on the 
books for the three Departments and the Commission, 
has the effect of waiving the normal statutory protection 
against discharge accorded permanent-status civil-service 
employees. 

Employees of the three Departments and the Commis-
sion found themselves on an island alone among civil-
service employees. Unlike the others they could be 
turned out summarily without learning any charges, 
without having an opportunity to reply, and, in the case 
of removal, perhaps for political or religious reasons, 
without the usual appeal to the Civil Service Commission. 
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The State Department, though, was cautious with its 

new power. No instances of misuse—or, in fact, use—of 

the McCarran rider were reported at first. But early in 

the summer of 1947 State Department officials returned 

to the Senate Appropriations Committee for money for 

the fiscal year of 1948. 
The pressure for scalps was greater this time. The De-

partment had the power but had not used it. Inexcusable! 

The cost would be severe cuts in appropriations, particu-

larly for the important cultural and information program 

(Voice of America) which Congressmen had convinced 

themselves was a bee-hive of left-wing holdovers from 

the war agencies. Department officials hurried back 

downtown and made a quick search for likely scalps. 

Presently they were served up—those of Mr. Blank and 

nine others. Committeermembers now "understood" the 

Department's financial requirements better. 

Other committees of Congress looked to other De-

partments. They were interested in the entire roll of 

2,200,000 Federal employees. Congressman Edward H. 

Rees, Republican, of Kansas, later chairman but then 

ranking minority member of the House Post Office and 

Civil Service Committee, led the initial drive in 1946 for a 

legislated government-employee loyalty probe. It was 

necessary, he argued, not only to purge the disloyal, but to 

protect the loyal from suspicion. There was good reason 

to suspect, he maintained without contradiction, that the 
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]anadian spy ring had not been confined to Canada. He 

vas far from being alone in this belief. 

In July, 1946, Rees was constituted a sub-committee 

Chairman to investigate these matters. Eighteen days later, 

hordy before adjournment, the sub-committee reported. 

t said that testimony at secret sessions was "sufficient to 

ndicate the immediate necessity for certain action." 

-lowever, no detailed plan was advocated; nor was the 

estirnony made public. 
The sub-committee recognized, however, "the impos-

ibility of adequately protecting the government (with 

!cisting appropriations) from the infiltration of persons 

arhose primary loyalty is to other governments." The 

Civil Service Commission, the committee also found, had 

tlready begun to draw up instructions to be issued to 

other Federal agencies for stop-gap steps. 

"The only way to afford complete protection to 

our government," the sub-committee concluded, "is to 

require all persons who apply for positions to be thor-

oughly investigated and fingerprinted in advance of em-

ployment." This would require an immediate increase in 

appropriations from loyalty investigations by the Civil 

Service Commission and the Departments. But no action 

was taken by Congress prior to adjournment. 

Chairman Rees, meanwhile, finding himself a minority 

in his own sub-committee, recommended that the com-

mittee hold further hearings and make a "full and com-

plete investigation." He put in a bill to set up a full 
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WASHINGTON WITCH HUNT 

loyalty probe. It passed the House. It never got through 

the Senate because President Truman set to work to keep 

the problem an administrative one, which he thought it 

was. 
The first step, in November, 1946, was the appoint-

ment of a six-man Temporary Commission on Employee 

Loyalty, its membership drawn from top officials in the 

Civil Service Commission, Army, Navy, State Depart-

ment and Justice Department. Its conclusions, after four 

months of intensive study and investigation, were: 

"I. Although the vast majority of federal employees 

are loyal, some are subversive or disloyal. Because of the 

secretive manner and method of their operation, it is diffi-

cult to assess the numerical strength of the disloyal group. 

Whatever their number, the internal security of the gov-

ernment demands continuous screening, scrutiny, and 

surveillance of present and prospective employees. 

"2. The presence-within the government of any dis-

loyal or subversive persons presents a problem of such 

importance that it must be dealt with vigorously and 

effectively. 
"3. In addition to the emphasis properly placed on 

Communist and Communist-front organization activities, 

attention should be directed to the resurgence of native 

Fascist movements. 

"4. Even if all the specific recommendations contained 

in this report are adopted and effectuated, there is still a 

distinct need for aggressive and uninterrupted counter- 
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, ntelligence, particularly in its counter-espionage phases. 

A clear example of the need is presented in the recent 

Canadian experience with Communist espionage activi-

ties. It would be unrealistic to assume that foreign powers 

are not maintaining intelligence networks in this country. 

"s. A guarantee of full and complete protection to the 

government is a commendable objective, but is rendered 

difficult of achievement by the fact that public funds are 

not unlimited and must be made available for many other 

necessary and vital purposes. 

"6. There are compelling reasons for authorizing the 

Secretaries of State, War and Navy Departments and the 

Atomic Energy Commission to remove summarily any 

employee in the interest of national security. These more 

sensitive agencies require this specific authorization to 

safeguard the government from the destructive influence 

of disloyal or subversive persons." 

With the general conclusions there were extensive 

specific conclusions, outlining the commission's idea of 

how a continuing administrative loyalty check should 

function. On March 22, 1947, the President. issued the 

requisite Executive Order. Necessary appropriations 

were not at once forthcoming. Some men in Congress 

still hoped to defeat the President's order and force adop-

tion of probe by statute. 

Eventually the President won. The check started, care-

fully directed by a loyalty review board of eminent citi-

zens, administered on the lower levels by the departments 
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and agencies themselves, aided by a financially fortified 

Federal Bureau of Investigation. Except possibly for the 

island of summary authority, it would be no witch hunt. 

Mr. Blank was one of ten State Department employees 

trapped on that island. 

The ten were dismissed as "potential security risks" on 

June 23, 1947. 

The State Department swiftly backed down in the 

cases of three when it developed that the suspicions 

against them were, to say the least, greatly exaggerated. 

and when it began to appear that the Department would 

be made to look ridiculous if the stories of the three were 

aired. 
These three were allowed to resign "without preju-

dice." 
What was the difference between such dismissals anc 

such resignations? 
Imagine yourself an employer receiving an applicator 

from job-hunters. You like their work records. But yot 

check references and former places of employment. Or 

one, you get back a report that he resigned voluntarily 

On another, you receive word from the State Depart 

ment that he was fired as a "potential security risk.' 

Would you hire the latter? The answer is obvious. 

That, then, was the position of the seven whose name 

had not been cleared. 
And so, as a group, they turned to the law firm 0 

Arnold, Fortas & Porter, whose members are: 
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Thurman Arnold, former Assistant Attorney General; 
Abe Fortas, former Under Secretary of the Interior, and 
Paul A. Porter, former head of the Office of Price Ad-
ministration and one-time emissary of President Truman 
to Greece with the rank of Ambassador. 

No subversives there! 
These men, to their eternal credit, took the case with-

out fee because of the issue of civil liberties involved. 
They began at once to use the battering rams of their 

legal lore and their knowledge of government, gained 
from the inside, against the stone walls of bureaucracy. 

They had so little luck that Mr. Porter, in a July con-
versation with this reporter, said words something like 
these: - 

"Look, this is an outrageous case. We want to try to 
solve it without publicity. Obviously, our clients do not 
want their names made public if they can avoid it. If their 
names do become known, they will be tarred forever, 
even though they may be innocent—and we believe they 
are innocent of any real wrongdoing." 

Mr. Porter paused there. 
"But," he continued, and it turned out to be a big 

"but," "it may be necessary to turn on the spotlight of 
public opinion, and if so, I'll ask your help." 

The help was promised, but before it was asked there 
Were such intervening steps as these taken by the law 
firm: 

1. A letter from the law firm to John E. Peurifoy, 
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A
ssistant S

ecretary of S
tate, on July 9, 1947. It said in 

part: 
"S

ecretary of S
tate G

eorge C
. M

arshall, in a press 
conference, stated that the dism

issals w
ere because of in-

direct association w
ith representatives of foreign pow

ers. 
T

he affidavits (of the clients) specifically deny any asso-
ciation, directly or indirectly, w

ith any one know
n or 

suspected by them
 of being a representative of a foreign 

pow
er. 

"If there is no basis for charges against them
, as the 

attached affidavits state, I am
 sure you w

ill agree that a 
serious and grave injustice has been done. 

"If there is any basis for the charge, justice to the em
-

ployees as w
ell as public confidence in the D

epartm
ent of 

S
tate req

u
ires th

at th
ey

 b
e co

n
fro

n
ted

 w
ith

 sp
ecific 

charges and given an opportunity to m
eet them

." 
z. A

 letter from
 M

r. P
orter to M

r. P
eurifoy, on S

ep-
tem

ber z, 1947. It said in part: 
"I have had tw

o conferences w
ith you on this m

atter 
and on both occasions I advised you that w

e had agreed 
to represent these em

ployees on the express condition 
that their affidavits w

ere accurate and that they did not 
fail to disclose any m

aterial fads. 
"I requested further that you furnish us w

ith any evi-
dence of disloyalty on the part of these em

ployees or 
w

ith any data that the D
epartm

ent has w
hich raises ques-

tion as to the accuracy or com
pleteness of the affidavits 

subm
itted. 
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"N
o such inform

ation has been received. 
"I desire now

 to repeat this request and w
ill be avail-

able to discuss the m
atter further w

ith you at your early 
convenience." 

3. A
 letter from

 the law
 firm

 to S
ecretary M

arshall on 
O

ctober 4, 1947. It said in part: 
"W

e are addressing to you this appeal on behalf of 
seven em

ployees of the D
epartm

ent of S
tate w

hom
 this 

office represents to ascertain w
hether you have had the 

opportunity to review
 the action of the D

epartm
ent be-

fo
re w

e g
iv

e fu
rth

er ad
v

ice to
 th

ese ag
g

riev
ed

 in
d

i-
viduals. 

"W
e have today received a letter from

 M
r. P

eurifoy 
in w

hich he transm
its the recom

m
endation of the P

er-
sonnel S

ecurity B
oard that none of the rem

ainder 'be 
now

 perm
itted to resign w

ithout prejudice' and states 
`that the D

epartm
ent proposes to take no further action 

w
ith respect to the em

ployees concerned.' " 
T

he letter insisted that the D
epartm

ent's ow
n statem

ent 
on its security principles had been com

pletely ignored in 
three particulars: 

N
o charges had been subm

itted to the individuals or 
their counsel. 

N
o hearing had been given any of these individuals in 

the accepted sense that a hearing m
eans an opportunity 

to appear and subm
it evidence in response to charges. 

N
o response had been m

ade to the affidavits subm
itted 

by these em
ployees denying the general and vague accu- 
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sations that they associated "directly or indirectly" with 
representatives of foreign powers. 

The letter to Marshall concluded: 
"We submit that the procedure followed with respect 

to these employees is unfair and un-American. On their 
behalf we have asked that they be permitted to resign 
without prejudice in order that their economic future 
would not be jeopardized by the stigma of disloyalty or 
in the alternative that they be provided with charges and 
an opportunity to confront their accusers and rebut such 
charges. This we feel is their fundamental and simple 
right as American citizens. 

"The procedure that has been followed is tragically 
analogous to the tactics employed in the police states 
dominated by communists and fascists and has no place 
in the American system where standards of civil liberties, 
fair play and A inalienable principles of the Bill of 
Rights are the privilege of the humblest without regard 
to race, color or creed." 

The letter was written in vain. Exactly nothing hap-
pened until Sunday morning, November 2, 1947. On 
that day the New York Herald Tribune carried in all its 
grim detail the story of "Mr. Blank." 

It was an account that shocked the nation and com-
pelled the State Department to retreat from its stub-
bornly held position. 

It encouraged those who had been too timid to fight 
for civil liberties to rally their forces and say: 

[ 2o ] 
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"This witch hunt has gone far enough." 
It revived the fundamental belief of Americans that a 

man is innocent until he has been proven guilty. 
For these reasons, and because it is a case which may 

be studied in the future when the atmosphere of Amer-
ica in 194.7-1948 is under discussion, the essential facts 
are repeated here. 

Mr. Blank had been summarily dismissed from his 
State Department job. 

He was regarded by the department, on the basis of a 
report from the F.B.I. on the results of eight months of 
shadowing him, as a bad security risk. He was not ac-
cused of disloyalty. Because the Department did not re-
veal the nature of the charges against him, there was no 
way for anyone outside the top echelon of the Depart-
ment to know just what he did or was accused of having 
done. 

There was no way for anyone outside the top echelon 
to know whether he was a victim of a "witch hunt" or a 
man guilty of offenses that might warrant even greater 
punishment than dismissal: 

The State Department took the position that in such 
cases it could not reveal the charges lest it "give away" 
all it might have learned about the accused and thus tip 
off other persons with whom the individual might have 
associated. 

One State Department source acknowledged it was en-
tirely conceivable that an entirely innocent man might 
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be m
ade the victim

 of a fram
e-up, granting the unlikely 

possibility that sufficient enem
ies ganged up on him

. T
he 

source acknow
ledged som

ething even m
ore im

portant: 

th
at u

n
d
er th

e p
ro

ced
u
re su

ch
 an

 in
n
o
cen

t m
an

 w
o
u
ld

 

have no m
ore recourse, no m

ore chance of dem
anding 

and getting the charges against him
, than w

ould an indi-

vidual guilty of disloyalty and violation of security. 

T
h
e D

ep
artm

en
t said

 it w
o
u
ld

 b
e v

ery
 g

lad
 if so

m
e 

system
 of review

 could be established w
hich w

ould in-

su
re an

y
 accu

sed
 in

d
iv

id
u
al o

f th
e rig

h
t to

 h
av

e a real 

rev
iew

 m
ad

e o
f h

is case—
a rev

iew
 th

at w
o
u
ld

 satisfy
 

ev
ery

o
n
e th

at n
o
 v

io
latio

n
 o

f civ
il lib

erties h
ad

 b
een

 

com
m

itted. 
S

om
e of the facts that em

erged about M
r. B

lank w
ere: 

H
e w

orked for the governm
ent from

 F
ebruary, 1942, 

to the date he w
as "severed," June 23, 1947. H

e w
orked 

successively for the O
ffice of P

rice A
dm

inistration, the 

W
ar P

ro
d
u
ctio

n
 B

o
ard

, th
e W

ar D
ep

artm
en

t, th
e F

o
r-

eign E
conom

ic A
dm

inistration and the S
tate D

epartm
ent. 

In the late sum
m

er of 1946 the F
.B

.I. put tw
o agents 

on him
. T

hey kept close w
atch on his "daily com

ings and 

goings." T
hey learned the identities of people he talked 

to. T
hey took a picture of him

 one day as he crossed the 

street w
ith a w

om
an em

ployee in the office in w
hich he 

w
orked at the tim

e. S
ubsequently they show

ed the pic-

ture to his w
ife—

in his presence. 

In
 A

p
ril, 1947, th

e ag
en

ts v
isited

 h
im

 an
d
 h

is w
ife. 

T
hey questioned them

 closely about their past years and 
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the people they knew
. T

hat w
as w

hen they show
ed her 

the picture. 
In

 Ju
n
e, 1947, he w

as dism
issed "w

ithout any state-

m
ent of charges." 

H
e received a "hearing" in July before four S

tate D
e-

partm
ent superiors. H

e w
as told then that it w

as not in 

the nature of an appeal, that the case w
as closed as far as 

the D
epartm

ent w
as concerned, but that the law

 did not 

p
ro

h
ib

it lu
s em

p
lo

y
m

en
t b

y
 an

y
 o

th
er ag

en
cy

 o
f th

e 

governm
ent. 

H
e in

sisted
 h

e w
as n

o
t a C

o
m

m
u
n
ist, as th

e F
.B

.I. 

agents alleged, and that his only "association w
ith repre-

sen
tativ

es o
f fo

reig
n
 p

o
w

ers" w
as in

 th
e co

u
rse o

f h
is 

official duties at the S
tate D

epartm
ent. 

H
e felt h

e w
as en

titled
 to

 learn
 th

e ch
arg

es ag
ain

st 

him
 and have an opportunity to answ

er them
. H

e offered, 

at th
e "h

earin
g
," to

 sen
d
 ad

d
itio

n
al in

fo
rm

atio
n
, an

d
 

w
as told to go ahead—

"you send it over and w
e'll slap it 

in the file." 
H

e w
as denied the right to resign. 

H
e w

as d
en

ied
 th

e rig
h
t to

 see G
eo

rg
e C

. M
arsh

all, 

S
ecretary of S

tate. 

T
here w

ere tw
o m

ajor docum
ents in M

r. B
lank's case. 

O
ne w

as his affidavit given to his law
yers. T

he other w
as 

the transcript of the S
tate D

epartm
ent "hearing." 

H
is affidavit to his counsel told of the visit to his hom

e 

on the evening of A
pril 15, 1947, of tw

o F
.B

.I. agents. 

T
hey w

ere there tw
o hours.T

hey charged his w
ife and 
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him
 w

ith having been m
em

bers of the C
om

m
unist party 

in
 H

arlem
, N

. Y
., so

m
e tim

e ab
o
u
t th

e y
ear 1935, and 

stated that he w
as a "high official." (H

e had not m
et his 

w
ife in 1935.) T

hey gave no indication as to the source 
of their inform

ation save that they knew
 it from

 paid in-
fo

rm
ers. H

e to
ld

 th
em

 h
e n

ev
er h

ad
 sp

en
t an

y
 tim

e in
 

H
arlem

. T
hey recited his daily com

ings and goings for 
eight m

onths. T
hey knew

 w
ith w

hom
 he had lunch, w

ho 

visited his hom
e and w

hom
 he visited. 

T
hey questioned him

 about m
any acquaintances, about 

a co
u

p
le w

h
o

 h
ad

 g
o

n
e to

 a co
n

cert w
ith

 h
im

 an
d

 h
is 

w
ife, ab

o
u
t a m

an
 w

h
o
 h

ad
 receiv

ed
 m

ail at h
is h

o
m

e 
and about a check w

hich they saw
 him

 receive. H
e ex-

p
lain

ed
 h

e h
ad

 b
o

rro
w

ed
 so

m
e m

o
n

ey
 to

 m
ak

e an
 ad

-
vance paym

ent for nursery school for his child. 
T

hey said he had been photographed w
ith a girl from

 
his office w

hile crossing the street for coffee. T
hey pulled 

this picture out and show
ed it to his w

ife. 
T

h
e d

ay
 fo

llo
w

in
g
 th

e F
.B

.I. v
isit, h

e rep
o
rted

 it to
 

his supervisors, offering to resign if this accusation should 
result in a lack of confidence in him

. H
e told one of his 

superiors about being shadow
ed. T

he superior bluntly 
told him

 that, based on his long experience as an adm
inis-

trator, he w
as a dead duck w

hether innocent or guilty, 
because of the w

idespread hysteria in W
ashington at this 

tim
e. 

H
is offer to resign w

as countered w
ith an expression of 

com
plete confidence. 
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T
he S

tate D
epartm

ent security officers exam
ined him

 
for a total of tw

elve hours at intervals during M
ay and 

Ju
n
e o

f 
1947. T

h
ey

 q
u

estio
n

ed
 h

im
 o

n
 h

is o
p

in
io

n
s, 

friends, interests, jobs, associates, etc. H
e offered tw

enty-
nine specim

ens of his published and unpublished w
ritings 

from
 1933 on. N

othing in these interview
s appeared to 

incrim
inate him

 in any w
ay. 

D
u

rin
g

 th
e p

erio
d

 fro
m

 A
p

ril to
 Ju

n
e, w

h
en

 h
e w

as 
undergoing ,  q

u
estio

n
in

g
, th

e o
ffice h

ad
 so

 m
u
ch

 co
n
-

fidence in him
 that steps w

ere taken for his prom
otion. 

H
e w

as even given a private office, w
ith a staff and secre-

tary. 
H

o
w

ev
er, o

n
 Ju

n
e 

2
3

, 1
9

4
7

, at 5
:3

o
 

P
.M

., h
e w

as 
handed a letter by an adm

inistrative officer to the effect 
that as of that m

om
ent his services w

ere term
inated "in 

th
e in

terest o
f th

e U
n
ited

 S
tates." T

h
u
s h

e w
as su

m
-

m
arily fired w

ithout a hearing or know
ledge of charges 

or accuser. 
W

hen he returned the follow
ing m

orning to collect his 
personal belongings, he w

as forbidden entry to his office. 
H

e sent a letter on June 30, 1947, protesting the action 
and asking for a fair hearing. 

A
 few

 days after the dism
issal, A

rch K
. Jean, of the 

personnel division of the D
epartm

ent, telephoned him
 to 

appear w
ithin a day before a com

m
ittee of four, includ-

ing M
r. Jean, to m

ake a statem
ent. W

hen he appeared 
before the panel and asked for the charges, they said they 
w

ould neither ask nor answ
er questions. H

e w
as to say 
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an
y
th

in
g
 h

e p
leased

 w
h
ich

 h
e b

eliev
ed

 relev
an

t. H
e 

spoke for about a half hour stating that he w
as innocent 

of anything w
hich could reflect on his loyalty. H

e also 

requested an interview
 w

ith M
r. M

arshall. 

T
his w

eird "hearing" w
as held on July 2, 1947. T

h
e 

four-m
an panel w

as headed by H
am

ilton R
obinson, di-

rector of the O
ffice of C

ontrols of the S
tate D

epartm
ent. 

O
n it also w

ere three of his subordinates, M
r. Jean, S

axton 

B
radford and T

hom
as E

. H
offm

an. 
T

he transcript of the proceedings is a docum
ent unique 

in the annals of the long struggle for the preservation of 

civ
il lib

erties in
 th

e U
n
ited

 S
tates. It is o

ffered
 in

 its 

entirety, except for the om
ission of certain nam

es, m
en-

tio
n
 o

f w
h
ich

 w
o
u
ld

 serv
e n

o
 p

u
rp

o
se. In

 su
ch

 star-

cham
ber inquiries, the accused rem

ains defenseless to 

the point of com
plete bew

ilderm
ent. T

he nature of the 

charges, the identity of his accusers and his constitutional 

rights to prove his innocence are all denied him
. 

T
he "hearing": 

M
R

. R
O

B
IN

S
O

N
: W

ell, I th
in

k
 w

e'll start, if w
e m

ay
, b

y
 

m
ak

in
g
 a little, b

rief statem
en

t to
 start th

e reco
rd

 o
ff, 

w
hich I w

ill read. M
r. B

lank, the basis for your term
ina-

tion from
 the D

epartm
ent w

as explained in the D
epart-

m
ent's press release on June 27 and, for the sake of the 

record, I think I'll read the pertinent part of the release: 

"T
he S

tate D
epartm

ent has term
inated the services of 

ten em
ployees against w

hom
 derogatory inform

ation has 
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been developed through investigation. In taking this ac-

tio
n
, th

e D
ep

artm
en

t fo
llo

w
ed

 its p
o
licy

 o
f d

ro
p
p
in

g
 

em
ployees from

 its rolls w
here substantial doubt exists as 

to their security. In a few
 of these cases, other adm

inis-

trative considerations entered into the decision to term
i-

nate the em
ployees concerned." 

H
o
w

ev
er, in

 o
rd

er to
 g

iv
e y

o
u
 an

 o
p
p
o
rtu

n
ity

 to
 b

e 

heard on the question and to assure that your record w
ill 

be as com
plete as you care to m

ake it, this C
om

m
ittee 

w
as established for the purpose of hearing any statem

ent 

th
at y

o
u
 w

ish
 to

 m
ak

e, eith
er v

erb
ally

 o
r tak

in
g
 an

y
 

w
ritten statem

ent you care to insert in your record. T
hat 

is partially for the purpose of perm
itting you to have a 

com
plete record, as com

plete a one as you care to m
ake, 

sin
ce th

e M
cC

arran
 R

id
er d

o
es n

o
t p

ro
h
ib

it y
o
u
r em

-

p
lo

y
m

en
t b

y
 an

y
 o

th
er ag

en
cy

 o
f th

e g
o
v
ern

m
en

t. I 

w
ant to m

ake it clear, how
ever, that this is not a legal 

proceeding, this hearing, and it is not in the nature of an 

appeal. T
he proceedings w

hich w
ere taken are final so 

far as the D
epartm

ent is concerned and, under those cir-

cum
stances and under its term

s of reference, the C
om

-

m
ittee is not going to ask you any questions, except such 

as w
e m

ay feel helpful to your presentation for explana-

tory purposes, nor are w
e able to answ

er any questions, 

and so w
e are delighted to listen to any statem

ent that 

you care to m
ake on that basis. 

M
R

. B
L

A
N

K
: A

s I told M
r. Jean w

hen he phoned rue yes-

terday, it is very difficult to m
ake a statem

ent as I am
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com
pletely bew

ildered by w
hat it's about. Y

ou gentlem
en 

can appreciate the press release doesn't say very m
uch 

anyw
ay in any one specific case. I did have the oppor-

tu
n
ity

 o
f b

ein
g
 called

 b
y
 th

e D
ep

artm
en

t secu
rity

 

people, I think, for about tw
elve hours of detailed ques-

tioning at w
hich I believe I supplied m

ost of the inform
a-

tion. I think it cam
e out, I know

 M
r. H

offm
an w

ill verify 

this, that a great deal of it hadn't com
e to the D

epart-

m
en

t's atten
tio

n
 an

d
 th

at I b
ro

u
g
h
t m

o
st o

f it to
 th

e 

pepartm
e l es. attention. I, really, frankly, don't know

 

w
hat to say, since I don't know

 w
hat the charges are be-

cause of the result of those hearings—
I don't think any-

thing cam
e out that I w

ould consider to be a charge. I 

m
ean, I can m

ake a general statem
ent as to w

hat I think 

m
y ow

n loyalty position is, I have no doubt in m
y ow

n 

.m
ind as to m

y ow
n loyalty, I don't think I have ever been 

tem
pted in that direction or ever com

m
itted any act that 

w
ould be considered disloyal to the governm

ent. I have 

net yer.jeopardized the security of the D
epartm

ent or the 

governm
ent. I cam

e dow
n here over five years ago to 

w
ork for the governm

ent to help the w
ar effort. I found 

the kind of w
ork that I w

as interested in; the encourage-

m
ent I got from

 m
y superiors, in other jobs and m

y 

present one, indicated their w
illingness to see m

e con-

tinue and gt no tim
e did any question ever arise as to m

y 

loyalty. I w
orked for the W

ar D
epartm

ent in the m
iddle 

of the w
ar in M

ateriel C
om

m
and of the A

rm
y A

ir Forces 

as a civilian, w
hich had, in m

y .personal opinion, m
uch 
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m
ore secret data than I have ever touched in the D

epart-

m
ent. In the m

iddle of the w
ar, not only did I handle 

production data, but I handled design data of not only the 

contem
porary aircraft but of future aircraft. I think I 

w
as cleared by G

-2
, I have never been questioned by any-

body, I w
as cleared by F

E
A

, I have alw
ays been cleared, 

so that I have no idea of anything concrete. I don't know
 

w
hether you w

ant m
e to go into all the inform

ation that . 

I gave the security people. 	
. 

M
R

. R
O

B
IN

SO
N

': Since this is for your o
w

n
 benefit, yoed. 

better decide about that. W
e'll listen to .anything you 

w
ant to say. 

M
R

. B
L

A
N

K
: I w

ondered if you gentlem
en had read tha 

 t 
record—

am
 I allow

ed to ask that question? 
M

R
. R

O
B

IN
SO

N
: W

hat record are you referring to
?
 

M
R

. B
L

A
N

K
: T

hat the security people took, the question-.. 

ing w
hich gave in great detail m

y w
hole past history. 

M
R

. R
O

B
IN

SO
N

: Y
es, I think the answ

er is yes, that it cer- 

tainly has been read and considered. . 
M

R
. B

L
A

N
K

: S
o you do have this detailed know

ledge of 

w
hat I have done in the past. I don't know

 w
hether I 

brought the attention of the D
epartm

ent or w
hether they 

had the inform
ation them

selves, as to the fact that—
I 

forget the date, about tw
o m

onths ago—
the F.B

.I. visited 

m
e and I gave the D

epartm
ent all the details, .but there 

w
as n

o
th

in
g
 co

n
crete b

ro
u
g
h
t o

u
t in

 an
y
 o

f th
at in

-

form
ation. I thought I had satisfied every question they 

brought up. 
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M
R

. R
O

B
IN

S
O

N
: W

ell, w
e realize the difficulty you are in, 

in this position; on the other hand, I'd suggest that you 

m
ight think back over your ow

n career and perhaps in 

your ow
n m

ind delve into som
e of the factors that have 

gone into your career w
hich you think m

ight have been 

su
b
ject to

 q
u
estio

n
, an

d
 see w

h
at th

ey
 are an

d
 see 

w
h
eth

er y
o
u
'd

 lik
e to

 ex
p
lain

 o
r m

ak
e an

y
 statem

en
t 

w
ith

 reg
ard

 to
 an

y
 o

f th
em

—
th

at is ab
o
u
t th

e b
est I 

can do as far as helping you along that line. 

M
R

. B
L

A
N

K
: W

ell, as you appreciate, I have been think-

ing about anything in m
y career in the past that could 

be subject to question and I, frankly, don't see anything. 

I think there is som
ething going on in W

ashington w
hich 

the F
.B

.I. is interested in of w
hich I have no idea. I have 

heard they have seen from
 forty to sixty people, they are 

after so
m

eth
in

g
, th

ey
 q

u
estio

n
ed

 m
e in

 d
etail ab

o
u
t 

certain people I knew
, people I had w

orked w
ith, m

ainly, 

at F
E

A
 an

d
 W

P
B

. W
h
at th

ey
 are after I d

o
n
't k

n
o
w

, 

there is som
ething that is bothering them

 and I am
 be-

w
ildered by w

hat they are after. P
erhaps there is som

e-

thing going on. I feel if there is, I am
 outside the picture. 

B
y som

e accident or quirk, I have w
orked w

ith som
e of 

these people w
hom

 I didn't even see socially. I happened 

to get into a car club w
ith som

ebody w
hom

 a question 

cam
e up about. I am

 at a loss to go into any detail. T
hey 

accused m
e, as I pointed out to the C

om
m

ittee, of being a 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ist, b

u
t, as I p

o
in

ted
 o

u
t to

 th
e C

o
m

m
ittee, I 

m
ean the security people, I have denied that point, there 
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w
as no evidence raised. I adm

itted, w
hen I w

ent to the 

U
niversity, w

hen I taught there, I attended all kinds of 

m
eetings that w

ere held on the cam
pus, but never joined 

any organization. T
he security people m

ade m
e sw

ear to 

that fact under oath, that I w
as not a C

om
m

unist nor w
as 

I affiliated to a long list of organizations w
hich they asked 

m
e questions about. A

ll I know
 is that this action taken 

is—
w

ell, the punishm
ent doesn't fit the alleged crim

e. I 

m
ean, I don't know

 w
hether you gentlem

en realize w
hat 

you have done to m
e, not you personally, but w

hat the 

D
epartm

ent has done—
com

pletely blackballed m
e from

 

earn
in

g
 a liv

in
g
 in

 th
e fu

tu
re. I d

o
n
't k

n
o
w

 w
h
ere to

 

turn. 
M

R
. R

O
B

IN
S

O
N

: I think you can be assured that the D
e-

partm
ent w

as not unaw
are of those aspects of it. 

M
R

. B
L

A
N

K
: 

O
n
 w

h
at b

asis h
as th

e D
ep

artm
en

t d
o
n
e 

som
ething like that, w

ithout even telling m
e? I am

 just 

bew
ildered about it. I am

 trying to be as frank as I pos-

sibly can. 
M

R
. R

O
B

IN
S

O
N

: T
he only w

ay I can suggest helping you 

is that you just go ahead and spill your feelings about all 

th
e th

in
g
s th

at y
o
u
 m

ig
h
t th

in
k
 m

ig
h
t h

av
e b

een
 in

-

volved. 
M

R
. B

L
A

N
K

: It's very difficult. I m
ean, I once helped edit 

a pam
phlet on "W

hat P
rice M

ilk?" w
hich criticized m

ilk 

com
panies for their large profits. M

y w
hole career has 

been in teaching and w
orking, it is extrem

ely difficult 

fo
r m

e to
 m

ak
e an

y
 statem

en
t. I w

ish
 y

o
u
 g

en
tlem

en
 

[3
1

) 
 

. 	
. 	

.1
1
4
"
.•

 •
■
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

■
••••1

1
.1

1
1
•M

•N
e
h
 
	

•
 
•
 	

•
 
	

 
•
 



W
A

S
H

IN
G

T
O

N
 W

IT
C

H
 H

U
N

T
 

could help m
e by asking m

e questions. I realize you are 

tied
 d

o
w

n
 b

y
 a law

. 

M
R

. J
E

A
N

: 
Y

o
u
 m

en
tio

n
ed

 th
at y

o
u
 w

ere asso
ciated

, 

through a car club, w
ith som

e people. 

M
R

. B
L

A
N

K
: W

ell, I don't know
. I am

 not associated, I 

don't know
 w

hether they cam
e out of a car club. T

hey 

ask
ed

 m
e ab

o
u
t certain

 p
eo

p
le I w

o
rk

ed
 w

ith
 at F

E
A

. 

T
here is a rum

or going through W
ashington that they are 

after T
reasu

ry
 p

eo
p
le an

d
 p

eo
p
le w

h
o
 w

o
rk

ed
 o

n
 th

e 

so-called "M
orgenthau P

lan." I am
 just in the dark about 

this, I w
ish som

ebody w
ould tell m

e w
hat it is about. I 

don't m
ean—

I am
 just bew

ildered about this w
hole thing. 

P
erh

ap
s th

ere are so
m

e p
eo

p
le I h

av
e m

et an
d
 k

n
o
w

 

w
hose reputations aren't exactly the best, according to 

certain
 p

eo
p
le, b

u
t th

ere is n
o
th

in
g
 in

 m
y
 actio

n
s to

-

w
ard them

 or tow
ard anything else that w

ould indicate 

any question of loyalty or anything that I can see. I m
ean, 

m
y very w

ork in the D
epartm

ent should be som
e indica-

tion of that and, as I understand it, nobody w
hom

 I have 

w
orked w

ith or w
orked for, has been called in on this—

people I w
orked w

ith day and night and S
aturdays and 

S
undays and every day on problem

s, people w
ith w

hom
 I 

have shared a room
 and gone to lunch w

ith. 

M
R

. R
O

B
IN

S
O

N
: W

ell, w
h
o
 w

o
u
ld

 y
o
u
 say

 w
ere th

o
se 

people? 
M

R
. B

L
A

N
K

: 
(M

entioning six associates) A
ll those peo-

p
le are m

y
 su

p
erio

rs. I w
o
rk

ed
 w

ith
 all th

o
se p

eo
p
le 

stead
ily

 an
d
 clo

sely
. T

h
ey

 k
n
o
w

 ex
actly

 w
h
at I h

av
e 

[ 32 

T
H

E
 H

U
N

T
E

R
S
 A

N
D

 T
H

E
 H

U
N

T
E

D
 

been w
orking on, w

hat I have been thinking, how
 I have 

reacted in the D
epartm

ent on those things. I don't know
 

w
hether you gentlem

en know
 w

hat I have been doing, I 

have w
orked on the post-U

N
R

R
A

 R
elief P

rogram
 and 

they gave m
e the job of program

m
ing it. T

he day after 

I got the dism
issal note, at 5:3o, the stuff I had prepared 

w
as taken up to the T

aber C
om

m
ittee—

stuff for w
hich I 

w
as responsible. I w

as the one w
ho prepared the first m

a-

terial on the G
reek stuff. T

hey took m
y m

aterial, they 

know
 exactly.• w

hat I have done since I have been in this 

D
epartm

ent, and I am
 positive they are w

illing to testify 

as to that. T
hey are as m

ystified as I am
 about it. I have 

shared an office w
ith a colleague now

 since last D
ecem

-

b
er, w

e h
av

e arg
u
ed

 ab
o
u
t an

d
 d

iscu
ssed

 th
in

g
s, th

ey
 

know
 w

hat is on m
y m

ind and how
 I have reacted tow

ard 

the U
nited S

tates policy and w
hat w

e have been involved 

in. 
M

R
. J

E
A

N
: W

h
at w

o
u
ld

 y
o
u
 say

 y
o
u
r reactio

n
 is? 

M
R

. B
L

A
N

K
: C

o
m

p
letely

 in
 acco

rd
 w

ith
 w

h
at o

u
r g

o
v
-

ernm
ent has been doing, not only that, but w

orking day 

an
d
 n

ig
h
t to

w
ard

 th
o
se en

d
s. T

h
e F

.B
.I. fo

llo
w

ed
 m

e 

and they adm
itted that they had to com

e S
aturdays and 

S
undays and nights, they w

ere a little disturbed about 

m
y w

orking on these program
s. 

M
R

. J
E

A
N

: Y
o
u
 say

 y
o
u
 n

u
m

b
er am

o
n
g
 y

o
u
r frien

d
s 

people w
ho are frow

ned upon by others. 

M
R

. B
L

A
N

K
: 

W
ell, I d

o
n
't k

n
o
w

 w
h
eth

er th
ey

 are 

frow
ned upon, the investigation brought out that I knew
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M
R

. B
L

A
N

K
: I am

 trying to recall these things that w
ere of 

interest to the F
.B

.I. I have no idea w
hy they questioned 

m
e about them

. 
M

R
. JE

A
N

: D
o these people you m

ention, to your know
l-

ed
g
e, ex

p
ress an

 id
eo

lo
g
y
 th

at d
iffers fro

m
 A

m
erican

 

philosophy? 
M

R
. B

L
A

N
K

: I frankly have never got that far w
ith them

. 

Y
o
u
 k

n
o
w

 th
e situ

atio
n
 w

e w
ere in

 at F
E

A
. M

r. ---

w
ent to Japan,,  M

r. -- w
en

t to
 G

erm
an

y
, an

d
 I ran

 

that w
hole shop. S

o, in relation to business, M
rs. 

sent m
e a w

hole slew
 of letters, they are in m

y file, on her 

observations in P
aris, and I w

ould give those to you if 

you'd let m
e get into it. W

e saw
 her a few

 tim
es socially 

w
hen she cam

e back because she had a great m
any in-

teresting things to tell about her trip abroad. 

M
R

. JE
A

N
: H

ave you seen her recently? 

M
R

. B
L

A
N

K
: Y

es, her husband got fired and I called her up 

an
d
 sh

e said
 th

ey
 w

ere leav
in

g
 an

d
 I in

v
ited

 th
em

 fo
r 

dinner before they left for N
ew

 Y
ork. I told the security 

people I w
as calling her up because I had heard she had 

g
o
n
e to

 th
e h

o
sp

ital w
h
en

 sh
e h

eard
 h

er h
u
sb

an
d
 w

as 

fired. W
hy that happened, I don't know

. I just think it is 

unfortunate that I have com
e in contact over the last year 

w
ith certain people that I know

 nothing about. 

M
R

. R
O

B
IN

SO
N

: N
ow

, you have said several tim
es "cer-

tain people" but so far you have only m
entioned one or 

tw
o
. 

M
R

. B
L

A
N

K
: W

e
ll, M

rs. ---, 	
-
-
, th

e
n
 —
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som
ebody w

hom
 I see occasionally, w

ho w
orks for R

us-

sian W
ar R

elief, but I knew
 him

 because w
e lived in the 

sam
e house, but I knew

 m
any other people in the sam

e 

house and I gave the nam
es of other people w

hom
 I saw

 

m
o
re o

ften
 th

an
 I saw

 h
im

. A
s I p

o
in

ted
 o

u
t to

 th
ese 

p
eo

p
le, it is n

o
t a q

u
estio

n
 o

f th
e few

 p
eo

p
le certain

 

people m
ay have som

e doubts about, but it is a-question of 

all the people 1 know
 that should be taken into considera-

tion. B
ut, apparently, the interest is just for the few

 w
ho 

are n
o
t th

o
u
g
h
t o

f w
ell an

d
 I d

o
n
't k

n
o
w

 w
h
y
 th

ese 

people aren't. M
rs. --, I think they questioned m

e a lot 

about her—
I knew

 her because she w
as in the office and 

cam
e to m

y house once or tw
ice and I w

as in her house 

o
n
ce o

r tw
ice, it w

as a p
u
rely

 so
cial th

in
g
. W

h
y
 th

ey
 

questioned m
e about her, I don't know

. T
hey questioned 

m
e about giving things to certain people. In every case I 

pointed out it w
as on m

y thesis. I finished m
y D

octor's 

thesis and w
ent around visiting econom

ists in W
ashing-

to
n
 w

h
o
 co

u
ld

 read
 it. O

n
ce th

ey
 ask

ed
 m

e w
h
y
 I g

o
t 

a ch
eck

, fo
r ex

am
p
le, at lu

n
ch

. M
y
 little b

o
y
 w

en
t to

 

nursery school and I had to pay a $6o bill three days be-

fo
re p

ay
 d

ay
, an

d
 I called

 a frien
d
 o

f m
in

e an
d
 I b

o
r-

row
ed $ too and I paid him

 back a w
eek later. It's things 

lik
e th

at th
at ju

st seem
 to

 m
e to

 b
e silly

, th
at are im

-

p
o
rtan

t to
 o

th
er p

eo
p
le. I'd

 lik
e to

 k
n
o
w

 w
h
at all th

at 

m
eans. I think I brought all this out, didn't I, M

r. H
off-

m
an, in the long questioning? 

M
R

. H
O

F
F

M
A

N
: I think m

ost of it, yes. 
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, I don ' t know

 if he is the m
an that the check affair 

took place w
ith, w

hy they questioned him
 about m

e I don't 

k
n
o
w

. T
h
ey

 q
u
estio

n
ed

 m
e ab

o
u
t -- -- v

ery
 co

m
-

pletely, w
hy, I don't know

; then som
e com

plete strangers, 

som
ebody I had m

entioned—
 ---, a friend of m

ine w
ho 

stayed in m
y house, he w

orked for O
P

A
 and now

 teaches 

at the U
niversity of 	

, I don't know
 w

hy they m
en- 

tioned his nam
e—

that other nam
e I alw

ays forget, I m
et 

him
 once at a luncheon at the F

ederal R
eserve B

oard on a 

problem
 he had been w

orking on in relation to som
ething 

w
e h

ad
 b

een
 d

o
in

g
 in

 th
e D

ep
artm

en
t an

d
, w

ell, --

cam
e up and m

y pam
phlet business cam

e up that I helped 

o
n
, an

d
 m

y
 co

n
n
ectio

n
 w

ith
 	

---, w
h
o
 is n

o
w

 

dead. S
he w

as 	
 —

' s previous assistant and I got the 

job after she left through her, and she w
ent dow

n to this 

M
ilk C

onsum
ers P

rotective C
om

m
ittee and asked m

e to 

help her and I had been very grateful for the opportunity 

I got, because this job I got w
hich w

as supposed to last 

for tw
o w

eeks lasted for five years, w
hich included m

y 

teach
in

g
 at co

lleg
e an

d
 w

o
rk

 at th
e N

atio
n
al B

u
reau

, 

and w
hen she asked m

e to help her—
 

M
R

. JE
A

N
: W

hat w
as the full nam

e of that B
ureau? 

M
R

. B
L

A
N

K
: N

ational B
ureau of E

conom
ic R

esearch. 

M
R

. R
O

B
IN

SO
N

: Y
ou said a few

 m
inutes ago that m

ost of 

the people you seem
 to be questioned about are the ones 

that are apparently undesirable from
 the point of view

 

of the questioners. If you think that only half the picture 

w
as show

n, w
ould you care to put in the record som

e 
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nam
es of people, other than your supervisors, w

ho w
ould 

present a fair picture of your associations? 

M
R

. B
L

A
N

K
: Y

es, the fact is, I gave the security people a 

terrific list of nam
es and everybody called m

e back in 

tow
n—

you didn't m
iss seeing anybody. I'll try—

 

M
R

. R
O

B
IN

S
O

N
: N

o, if you have already given it—
I just 

w
anted to give you the chance to say that if you w

anted 

to. 
M

R
. B

L
A

N
K

: T
he fact is, I brought in a typew

ritten list, 

n
o
t o

n
ly

 th
at, I b

ro
u
g
h
t in

 co
p
ies o

f ev
ery

th
in

g
, n

o
t 

everything, but nineteen specim
ens of w

hat I w
rote since 

1933, at least tw
o pieces for each year w

hich I believed 

w
o
u
ld

 b
e an

 in
d
icatio

n
 o

f th
e w

ay
 I th

o
u
g
h
t o

v
er th

e 

period of years. I believe the security people analyzed 

those docum
ents I brought in, beginning w

ith 1933, did 

you not? 

M
R

. R
O

B
IN

S
O

N
: W

ell, you can be sure everything you 

have subm
itted has been considered. 

M
R

. B
L

A
N

K
: S

o that is w
hy I am

 com
pletely bew

ildered 

about the w
hole situation. D

id I leave anything out that 

you think I ought to bring up? W
e are trying to get the 

facts out in this, I presum
e. D

o you think I ought to m
en-

tion anything else? I assum
e you gentlem

en are trying to 

get at the facts. 

M
R

. R
O

B
IN

SO
N

: I don't think w
e can suggest to you things 

that you ought to discuss. I think it's up to you to decide. 

A
s I say, w

e are trying to help by m
aking suggestions to 

y
o
u
, in

 a g
en

eral w
ay

, w
h
ich

 m
ay

 m
ak

e y
o
u
r reco

rd
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m
ore com

plete w
hen it all com

es together. B
ut so far as 

saying you ought to talk about this or you ought to talk 

about that, I don't see how
 w

e can do that. T
his is your 

opportunity to say anything that you w
ant. 

M
R

. B
L

A
N

K
: G

entlem
en, it's m

y "opportunity "
  to

 sa
y
 

anything, but really, to be frank—
you gentlem

en aren't 

responsible—
it's really not an opportunity. I don't know

 

w
hat to talk about. I m

ean, I am
—

 

M
R

. R
O

B
IN

S
O

N
: A

ll right, I w
ithdraw

 the statem
ent it w

as 

an opportunity, if you prefer. 

M
R

. B
L

A
N

K
: I am

 not blam
ing you gentlem

en, you are 

held w
ithin certain rules and regulations, but I'd like to 

know
 w

hat to talk about and w
hat to say. It's extrem

ely 

difficult in such a situation. I don't know
 w

ho said any-

thing about m
e or w

hat has been said about m
e and the 

press release m
akes it even w

orse, I m
ean, the kind of 

statem
ent w

here nothing has been developed. I m
ean, I 

am
 n

o
t try

in
g
 to

 g
et m

ad
 o

r an
y
th

in
g
, I ap

p
reciate th

e 

situation, but I am
 involved in a very disastrous w

ay in 

this. Y
ou m

entioned about having an opportunity to in-

sert additional stuff—
w

ill I get an opportunity after this? 

M
R

. R
O

B
IN

S
O

N
: A

nything you w
ant to put in. 

M
R

. B
L

A
N

K
: D

oes that include m
y bringing statem

ents by 

m
y colleagues and people I w

orked .  fo
r? C

o
u
ld

 I h
av

e 

them
 insert statem

ents in the record for m
e? 

M
R

. R
O

B
IN

S
O

N
: S

u
re, I d

o
n
't see an

y
 reaso

n
 w

h
y
 n

o
t. 

A
fter all, as I said in the beginning, the purpose of this 
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is to give you as com
plete a record, as far as your case is 

concerned, as you can m
ake it or care to m

ake it. 

M
R

. B
L

A
N

K
: W

ell, I care to m
ake it as com

plete as pos-

sible. T
his w

hole thing, the w
ay it developed w

as that I 

cam
e to the D

epartm
ent. T

he fact is, I cam
e the very next 

m
orning that the F

.B
.I. visited m

e and w
ent to m

y su-

p
erio

rs, I called
 -- an

d
 --- an

d
 w

en
t to

 th
eir o

ffice 

and told them
 the com

plete story. T
hey im

m
ediately got 

in touch w
ith 	 , w

h
o
 w

as sick
, an

d
 th

ey
 w

en
t to

 see 

--L
, h

e w
as th

e to
p

 m
an

 th
at d

ay
 b

ecau
se M

r. 

-- w
as ab

ro
ad

 an
d
 --- w

as o
u
t o

f to
w

n
. T

h
ey

 w
en

t 

to
 --'s o

ffice; h
e w

as o
u

t an
d

 I th
in

k
 th

ey
 saw

 	
 

T
hey told him

 the story and I gave them
 all the details 

I later repeated to the security people. T
hey cam

e back 

to m
e and told m

e this, this is m
y interpretation, w

hich 

I verified later—
 

M
R

. R
O

B
IN

S
O

N
: "T

hey," m
eaning w

ho? 
M

R
. B

L
A

N
K

: ---, m
ainly. H

e cam
e back and said I w

ould 

have nothing to w
orry about in this thing, that the charges 

in this consideration w
ere not true, that the security peo-

ple w
ould look into it, that I should cooperate w

ith the 

security people, and that if anything did arise I w
ould be 

called before them
. T

he fact is, I even offered m
y resig-

nation that very first day, for tw
o reasons: O

ne, I asked 

the advice of som
e people and they said w

ith the present 

state of things in W
ashington, w

hether you are right or 

w
ro

n
g
, o

n
ce th

is th
in

g
 g

ets started
 y

o
u
 are o

u
t; an

d
 

secondly, I w
as in the m

idst of som
e very delicate nego- 
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tiations w
ith gentlem

en on the geographic desks, and I 

told them
 I didn't w

ant this charge hanging over m
e to 

h
u
rt th

e D
iv

isio
n
 in

 o
u
r relatio

n
s w

ith
 th

e g
eo

g
rap

h
ic 

people, and they had m
y resignation and they told m

e 

no, they refused to accept it because they felt the charges 

w
ere u

n
w

arran
ted

 an
d
 if th

ere w
ere an

y
th

in
g
 th

at I 

w
ould be given tim

e to resign and you can verify that. 

M
R

. B
R

A
D

FO
R

D
: W

ho told you that? 

M
R

. B
L

A
N

K
: M

r. 	
 and I told that to the security peo- 

ple. I m
ean, m

ost of the inform
ation. I don't know

, you 

people w
on't answ

er m
y questions, so I don't know

, but 

I assu
m

e fro
m

 th
e k

in
d
 o

f q
u
estio

n
s an

d
 an

sw
ers an

d
 

things, that m
ost of the inform

ation about m
e cam

e from
 

m
e and not from

 the F
.B

.I. to the D
epartm

ent. M
ost of 

m
y w

ritings and everything I have com
e w

ith, everything 

I know
, assum

ing that the deal w
ould be fair and I am

 

not trying to blam
e anybody around here for it, and un-

d
er th

o
se circu

m
stan

ces y
o
u
 can

 ap
p
reciate th

e w
ay

 I 

feel about the situation—
being told to go back and not to 

w
orry, that I'd be notified if they had anything on m

e, 

being given plenty of chance to resign if they had any-

thing. 
M

R
. R

O
B

IN
S

O
N

: Just to clarify the record, w
asn't your dis-

cussion w
ith M

r. H
offm

an and the people in the security 

office after you talked w
ith the F

.B
.I.? 

N
E

R
. B

L
A

N
K

: Y
es, sure, because I im

m
ediately reported 

the next day, the next m
orning as soon as I got in, the 

co
m

p
lete d

etails o
f th

e co
n
v
ersatio

n
. M

r. --- h
as a 
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m
em

o on that in w
hich he w

rote dow
n w

hen I reported 

ev
ery

th
in

g
 to

 h
im

. I th
in

k
 I h

av
e b

een
 reaso

n
ab

le an
d
 

fair and tried to turn over every bit of inform
ation avail-

ab
le to

 y
o
u
, b

u
t I can

 o
n
ly

 g
o
 so

 far. Y
o
u
 m

u
st ad

m
it 

that it is entirely possible that som
e of the inform

ation 

gotten about m
e m

ay be w
rong; it m

ay be w
rong or m

is-

co
n
stru

ed
, so

 all I ask
 is a ch

an
ce to

 k
n
o
w

 w
h
at it is. 

A
nybody w

ho has com
e dow

n and devoted them
selves 

the w
ay I have, and especially w

hat I have done in the 

last year w
hen w

e have been com
pletely understaffed—

day and night and S
aturdays and S

undays w
orking on 

this; w
hy, just a w

eek before this all happened they w
ere 

pushing m
e into a prom

otion, I get a private office and 

an executive desk, I get three people to w
ork for m

e, in 

line w
ith everybody else being cut dow

n in the D
epart-

m
ent; for the kind of w

ork I have been doing. T
hey take 

the stuff up I prepared a day after I get kicked out, hav-

ing com
plete confidence in the m

aterial I prepared. 

M
R. R

O
B

IN
S

O
N

: I th
in

k
 I m

ig
h
t ju

st say
 fo

r th
e reco

rd
 

here one thing w
hich I believe is w

orth pointing out, and 

that is that it is fairly clearly indicated in the press release 

th
at th

is actio
n
 w

as tak
en

 o
n
 th

e g
ro

u
n
d
 o

f a d
o
u
b
t as 

to security, and w
hat I w

ould like to say for the record 

is that w
e carefully bear in m

ind in all these cases that 

there is a very definite difference betw
een the w

ord "se-

curity" and the w
ord "loyalty." I just w

ant that to be on 

the record. 
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M
R

. B
L

A
N

K
: M

ay I ask w
hat the difference is? It's not 

clear to m
e. 

M
R

. R
O

B
IN

SO
N

: T
here's a vast difference betw

een security 

and loyalty. 
M

R
. B

L
A

N
K

: I think—
m

ay I ask that question? 

M
R

. R
O

B
IN

SO
N

: Y
es. 

M
R

. B
L

A
N

K
: T

o clear up the difference betw
een them

, I 

m
ean to m

e, I think one—
 

M
R

. R
O

B
IN

S
O

N
: W

ell, I'll point out a difference. I think 

loyalty m
ust necessarily be a conscious proposition. S

e-

curity, or lack of it, m
ight be conscious or unconscious. 

A
nd I think that probably serves the purpose of w

hat I 

am
 trying to do, but I am

 m
aking that statem

ent for the 

record w
ithout any im

plication as to any conclusion that 

you should draw
 from

 that statem
ent, but you m

ade sev-

eral statem
ents about that and I just w

ant to m
ake clear 

that this action w
as based, as the press release stated, as a 

m
atter of security. 

M
R

. B
L

A
N

K
: Y

ou m
ean that the punishm

ent for an alleged 

v
io

latio
n
 o

f secu
rity

 is m
o
re sev

ere th
an

 q
u
estio

n
s o

f 

loyalty? W
hat I m

ean is, assum
e this w

hole thing is true 

about m
y security, isn't the punishm

ent to deprive m
e 

literally of a livelihood in the future one of the severest 

penalties you could pay? W
hat have I done, assum

ing-

and I'll assum
e that you are correct in w

hat you state, I 

m
ean

, y
o
u
 h

av
e co

m
p
letely

 d
ep

riv
ed

 m
e o

f th
e o

n
ly

 

th
in

g
s I can

 d
o
, eith

er w
o
rk

in
g
 fo

r th
e g

o
v
ern

m
en

t, 

going back to teaching, or w
orking for private industry 
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—
w

hat am
 I going to tell em

ployers? Y
ou are not going 

to find m
e lying about it because they w

ould catch up 

w
ith

 m
e an

d
 I w

o
u
ld

n
't lie ab

o
u
t it eith

er. C
o
u
ld

 I ex
-

plain this difference betw
een security and loyalty to som

e 

kind of college w
here I am

 trying to get a teaching job? 

M
R

. R
O

B
IN

S
O

N
: I am

 not suggesting that. I am
 not even 

su
g
g
estin

g
 th

e d
istin

ctio
n
 is p

ro
p
er in

 y
o
u
r case, I am

 

m
erely suggesting one is not necessarily synonym

ous 

w
ith

 th
e o

th
er. I th

in
k
 if y

o
u
 feel th

at, I d
o
n
't k

n
o
w

 

w
hether )/bu feel there is anything you w

ish to add to 

this as a statem
ent. 

M
R

. B
L

A
N

K
: Y

ou say I have the opportunity in the future 

to add things? 

M
R

. R
O

B
IN

S
O

N
: Y

es, you send it over and w
e'll slap it in 

the file. 

M
R

. B
L

A
N

K
: N

o indication—
I w

ish I had som
e indication. 

W
ill I be given an opportunity to read this statem

ent? 

M
R

. R
O

B
IN

SO
N

: Sure. 

M
R

. B
L

A
N

K
: B

ecause I w
as told I could read the other 

statem
ent, I never called about it to check on m

y previous 

statem
ent. 

M
R

. R
O

B
IN

S
O

N
: H

ow
 are w

e going to m
ake it available? 

A
re you going to be here in W

ashington or w
ould you 

rather com
e in and pick it up? I don't know

 how
 long it 

w
ill take, tw

o or three days, presum
ably, to get it. 

M
R

. B
LA

N
K

: 	
be around. 

M
R

. R
O

B
IN

SO
N

: I w
ant to m

ake clear this is your statem
ent, 

w
e are n

o
t ask

in
g
 y

o
u
 q

u
estio

n
s, y

o
u
 are m

ak
in

g
 th

is 
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statem
ent for yourself, therefore, you can do any darn 

thing you w
ant w

ith it. If you don't like it w
hen you get 

th
ro

u
g
h
, y

o
u
 can

 tear it u
p
 an

d
 rew

rite it, y
o
u
 can

 d
o
 

anything you w
ant to or add to it if you w

ant to. 

M
R

. B
L

A
N

K
: I understand the S

ecretary is a reasonable 

m
an. Is it possible for you gentlem

en to m
ake an appoint-

m
ent for m

e to see him
? 

M
R

. R
O

B
IN

SO
N

: I'm
 afraid that isn't our function. 

M
R

. B
L

A
N

K
: W

ell, I am
 m

aking a request anyw
ay. I am

 

not casting aspersions, of course, on anybody here, but 

I'd
 lik

e to
 g

et in
 to

u
ch

 w
ith

 th
e fin

al au
th

o
rity

 o
n
 th

is 

m
atter. 

M
R

. R
O

B
IN

SO
N

: W
ell, certainly, there is no reason in the 

w
orld w

hy you shouldn't, but I am
 afraid w

e are not in 

a position to be able to do anything about that. Just as a 

su
g
g
estio

n
, y

o
u
 m

ig
h
t w

an
t to

 g
et so

m
e o

f th
e p

eo
p
le 

you say have confidence in you, and so forth—
 

M
R

. B
L

A
N

K
: W

ell, they are attem
pting to see certain peo-

ple. I know
 that I am

 trying to do som
ething on m

y ow
n, 

of course. A
re there any questions? 

M
R

. R
O

B
IN

SO
N

: D
o you have anything further, A

rch? 

M
R

. JE
A

N
: I have nothing further, no. 

M
R

. R
O

B
IN

SO
N

: D
o you have any phase of it? 

M
R

. B
L

A
N

K
: W

ell, I'd
 ju

st lik
e to

 clo
se b

y
 reiteratin

g
 

again w
hat I have said before that, in m

y ow
n m

ind and 

in m
y ow

n conscience, I have no question as to m
y ow

n 

loyalty and m
y ow

n responsibility to the security of this 

governm
ent. I have a clear conscience com

pletely, so I 
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can
 o

n
ly

 state m
y
 sin

cerity
. T

h
is w

h
o
le th

in
g
 h

as m
e 

com
pletely bew

ildered. 

M
R

. R
O

B
IN

SO
N

: W
ell, I'll just add that if, at any tim

e, you 

w
an

t to
 ad

d
 an

y
th

in
g
 fu

rth
er to

 th
is, ju

st g
et in

 to
u
ch

 

w
ith T

orn H
offm

an and send anything over to him
 you 

w
ant to incorporate in the record, that w

ill be all right. 

M
R

. B
L

A
N

K
: W

ell, I think they w
rung m

e dry in tw
elve 

hours of questioning w
hich I asked for m

yself. 

M
R

. R
O

B
IN

S
O

N
: 0. K

. 

M
R

. B
L

A
N

K
; T

hank you. 

(H
earing adjourned at 3 	

P.M
.) 

T
he accused had denied all suggestions that he w

as a 

security risk or disloyal. 

"I have never done anything to m
erit the destruction 

of m
y reputation, and have alw

ays been com
pletely de-

v
o
ted

 to
 m

y
 co

u
n
try

 an
d
 th

e S
tate D

ep
artm

en
t," h

e 

insisted. 

T
hat w

as the note on w
hich the first story about M

r. 

B
lank ended. 

n It undoubtedly w
ould have been the end of M

r. B
lank, 

too, so far as getting out from
 under the shadow

 of sW
-

picion w
as concerned, had it not been that three voices 

w
ere raised. 

T
hey w

ere the voices of the press, of the radio—
and 

of the people. 

T
he voice of the press w

as the first to be heard. 

L
ed by the N

ew
 Y

ork H
erald T

ribune, the new
spapers 
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of the nation began to ham
m

er aw
ay at the star-cham

ber 
aspects of the case of "M

r. B
lank"—

and of the six others 
w

ho shared his sufferings. 
O

n this issue—
as on sim

ilar m
ajor issues—

the press of 
the country w

as practically unanim
ous. 

F
rom

 the N
ew

 Y
ork H

erald T
ribune, N

ovem
ber 3, 

1947: 
"W

hy the individual in this case w
as not allow

ed to 
resign is very hard to understand. It is not the principle 
that is defective here—

for som
e rather grim

 principles are 
being forced upon us—

but the procedure. A
nd if the 

nation, driven to protect itself from
 disloyal and C

om
-

m
unist infiltration, is not in turn to lose itself in police 

purges, drum
head courts, liquidations and all the cata-

strophic evils they bring w
ith them

, the utm
ost care in 

procedural fairness and justice is im
perative. It is not 

evident here." 
F

rom
 the S

t. L
ouis P

ost-D
ispatch, N

ovem
ber 3, 1947: 

"T
he hearing w

as a farcical affair." 
F

rom
 the W

ashington E
vening Star, N

ovem
ber 4, 

1947: 
"N

obody can validly question the S
tate D

epartm
ent's 

right and its duty to rid itself of all em
ployees regarded 

by com
petent authority as unfit for duty in this 'sensitive' 

departm
ent. B

ut unless disloyalty is involved, certainly 
the right of resignation w

ithout prejudice should be 

open." 
F

rom
 the W

ashington D
aily N

ew
s, N

ovem
ber 4, 1947: 
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"D
ischarge from

 G
overnm

ent service, on charges or 
suspicion of disloyalty, could be cruel punishm

ent to 
innocent persons denied the opportunity to defend them

-
selves w

hich they w
ould have if they w

ere tried for 
crim

es. T
he A

m
erican people w

ant the disloyal ejected 
from

 Federal jobs. B
ut they also w

ant the utm
ost possible 

assurance of protection for the loyal." 
F

rom
 the W

ashington P
ost, N

ovem
ber 8, 1947: 

"It is of the utm
ost im

portance for the future of G
ov-

ernm
ent em

ploym
ent that the present confusion betw

een 
discharges for disloyalty and discharges for security rea-
sons be dispelled. T

he State D
epartm

ent and other offices 
such as the C

entral Intelligence A
gency have abetted this 

confusion." 

T
hus spoke the voice of the press. 

T
he voice of the radio w

as just as firm
. 

H
ere are som

e of the argum
ents com

m
entators carried 

to their m
illions of listeners: 

E
lm

er D
avis, over the A

m
erican B

roadcasting C
om

-
pany netw

ork: 
"T

here is hysteria, in W
ashington and in the country; 

the T
hom

as C
om

m
ittee has helped w

hip it up, so has the 
not very w

ell-inform
ed clam

or of som
e C

ongressm
en 

outside that com
m

ittee; and the result is that w
e are m

ak-
ing ourselves ridiculous in the eyes of the w

orld." 
M

artin A
gronsky, over the A

m
erican B

roadcasting 
C

om
pany: 
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"T
his kind of action is not the A

m
erican w

ay, it is the 

w
ay of the police state. A

ll A
m

erican editors w
ho believe 

w
ith T

hom
as Jefferson that 'the price of freedom

 is eter-

nal vigilance' m
ight note and com

m
ent." 

T
hat w

as the voice of the radio. 

H
ow

 about the voice of the people? 

H
undreds of letters poured in, and tw

o—
only tw

o—

attem
p
ted

 to
 d

efen
d
 th

e S
tate D

ep
artm

en
t p

ro
ced

u
re. 

O
ne denouncer said in part: 
"If this m

an is innocent, he has sim
ply given his repu-

tation, not his life nor his character, in his country's serv- 

ice. H
e sh

o
u
ld

 n
o
t try

 to
 g

ain
 p

u
b
lic sy

m
p
ath

y
 fo

r h
is 

plight. In this personal trial he has the best possible oppor-

tunity to show
 the stuff of w

hich he is m
ade." 

H
ere are excerpts from

 tw
o of the hundreds of letters 

condem
ning the star-cham

ber proceedings: 

F
rom

 'W
ellsville, N

ew
 Y

ork: 

"O
n the face of it, the procedure has all the elem

ents 

of out-R
ussianing the R

ussians." 

F
rom

 C
hicago: 

"I have read it w
ith grow

ing horror. N
evertheless—

w
hen I sat dow

n to w
rite to S

ecretary M
arshall, urging 

him
 to rem

edy the situation that obtains in W
ashington, 

I realized that because of m
y w

ife and children I dared 

n
o
t w

rite to
 h

im
. I am

 a schoolteacher and although I 

am
 not a C

om
m

unist, I could be sm
eared as w

as the M
r. 

B
lank of w

hom
 you w

rote." 
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T
he three voices—

of the press, of the radio, and of the 

people—
began to get results. 

T
he results w

ere of vital interest to M
r. B

lank and the 

six w
h
o
 w

ere accu
sed

 w
ith

 h
im

. T
h
ey

 w
ere o

f eq
u
al 

im
portance to all the other civilian em

ployees of govern- 

m
ent. Indirectly, they had significance for every A

m
er- 

ican. F
or, w

ithin a little m
ore than tw

o w
eeks, the "im

-

possible" w
as achieved, in that a great bureaucratic agency 

of the m
am

m
oth and slow

-m
oving governm

ent m
achine 

w
as com

pelled to back dow
n com

pletely and to eat w
ords 

it h
ad

 u
ttered

 w
ith

 sm
u
g
 co

n
fid

en
ce th

at th
ey

 w
o
u
ld

 

be accepted as final. 

T
here w

as a running fight before this w
as achieved. 

O
n N

ovem
ber 3rd, three developm

ents indicated the 

w
ind w

as shifting. 

A
rn

o
ld

, F
o
rtas &

 P
o
rter receiv

ed
 a n

ew
 letter fro

m
 

A
cting S

ecretary L
ovett. It w

as postm
arked 6 P

.M
. S

at- 

urday, N
ovem

ber 1S
t. It arrived at the law

 firm
's office on 

M
onday m

orning. It w
as in answ

er to the letter that had 

been sent to S
ecretary M

arshall by the law
 firm

 as long 

before as O
ctober 4th! 

T
he law

 firm
 believed, and so did m

ost of W
ashington, 

that there never w
ould have been an answ

er if the S
tate 

D
epartm

ent had not learned on the m
orning of N

ovem
-

b
er ist fro

m
 th

is rep
o
rter th

at th
e N

ew
 Y

o
rk

 
H

erald 

T
ribune in

ten
d
ed

 to
 p

u
b
lish

 th
e p

ertin
en

t d
o
cu

m
en

ts 

concerning M
r. B

lank. 

X
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M
r. L

ovett, in his letter, w
as still stubborn. 

H
e rejected the law

 firm
's appeal that the seven m

en 

b
e allo

w
ed

 to
 resig

n
 w

ith
o
u
t p

reju
d
ice o

r b
e g

iv
en

 a 

com
plete statem

ent of the charges and a hearing. H
e said 

they could appeal to the C
ivil S

ervice C
om

m
ission. H

e 

m
ade it clear that, even on appeal, the charges w

ould not 

and could not be m
ade know

n to the accused. H
e said, 

"W
h
en

 a reaso
n
ab

le d
o
u
b
t is raised

 as to
 w

h
eth

er th
e 

continued em
ploym

ent of an individual w
ould constitute 

a security risk it is the policy of the departm
ent to resolve 

such doubt in favor of the governm
ent." 

T
he law

 firm
 fired back an answ

er the sam
e day. 

T
he reply assailed M

r. L
ovett's use of the w

ords "rea-

sonable doubt." 
D

id
 a "reaso

n
ab

le d
o
u
b
t" as to

 th
e reliab

ility
 o

f an
 

individual justify the D
epartm

ent in publicly accusing 

him
 and at the sam

e tim
e w

ithholding the evidence w
hich 

w
as the basis of its accusation? 

"T
hat is exactly w

hat the D
epartm

ent has done," the 

firm
's letter said. 

"T
he purpose of the S

tate D
epartm

ent in ridding itself 

o
f su

sp
ected

 m
em

b
ers is fu

lly
 serv

ed
 w

h
en

 su
ch

 m
en

 

term
inate their em

ploym
ent. W

e had not thought it w
as 

the duty of the D
epartm

ent to pursue such m
en into pri-

vate life w
ith unproved accusations. 

"W
e earnestly request that you change your present 

policy of pursuing them
 into private life w

ith charges 
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against w
hich you give them

 no opportunity to defend 

them
selves." 

T
hen, on this N

ovem
ber 3rd, cam

e the first hint that 

th
e W

h
ite H

o
u
se w

as in
terested

. H
aro

ld
 B

. M
itch

ell, 

president of the C
ivil S

ervice C
om

m
ission, called on P

res-

ident T
rum

an. T
hey talked about the case. A

fterw
ards, 

M
r. M

itchell m
erely announced that the P

resident had 

approved nom
inations for m

em
bership on the L

oyalty 

R
eview

 B
oard for F

ederal em
ployees. S

ubsequently it w
as 

learned they talked of the necessity of setting up safe-

guards. 
N

ovem
ber 4th passed w

ithout action. 

O
n N

ovem
ber 5th S

ecretary M
arshall held a press con-

ference. H
e seem

ed uncom
fortably aw

are that he w
ould 

be asked about the case of M
r. B

lank; about the w
hole 

lo
y
alty

 in
v
estig

atio
n
 set-u

p
. H

e h
ad

 a m
im

eo
g
rap

h
ed

 

statem
ent ready. 

S
ecretary M

arshall insisted the D
epartm

ent had never 

intended to m
ake public the nam

es of the accused or the 

charges against them
. (H

e acknow
ledged that the nam

es 

had "leaked." T
hey could only have leaked from

 som
e-

one w
ithin the D

epartm
ent. O

nly one new
spaper—

and 

that in W
ashington—

published the nam
es. A

ll others re-

frained, lest innocent m
en be sm

eared.T
he others w

ould 

have published the nam
es had the D

epartm
ent officially 

stood behind issuance of the list. T
hey did not fall for a 

"leak.") 

S
ecretary M

arshall had an excuse for not releasing the 
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charges. H
e said the State D

epartm
ent's action w

as based 

in large part "on highly classified m
aterial not under its 

control." T
his w

as tantam
ount to saying the m

aterial had 

been supplied by the F
ederal B

ureau of Investigation or 

other investigating arm
s of the governm

ent, and that the 

State D
epartm

ent could not disclose it, even though inno-

cent m
en m

ight have been hurt. 
S

ecretary M
arshall em

phasized tw
o points: 

T
hat the C

ivil S
ervice C

om
m

ission had the right to 

determ
ine the eligibility of the dism

issed persons for em
- 

ploym
ent in other governm

ent agencies. (T
his in support 

of the rather strange argum
ent that a m

an dism
issed from

 

a "sensitive agency" as a bad security risk w
ould be harm

-

less if allow
ed to w

ork in a non-sensitive agency.) 

T
hat the L

oyalty R
eview

 B
oard w

hich w
as in the proc-

ess of being established could consider an appeal "to per- 

m
it the em

ployee affirm
atively to establish his loyalty." 

B
ut he em

phasized again that inform
ation supplied to 

the S
tate D

epartm
ent by other agencies w

ould not be 

given to the C
om

m
ission or the B

oard unless the C
om

m
is-

sion or the B
oard w

as able to persuade the other agencies 

to com
e through w

ith it. 
It is only fair to S

ecretary M
arshall to say that few

 ob-

servers believed he had any hand in directing the case 

against the seven m
en. M

ost observers believed the respon-

sibility lay w
ith underlings and that the S

ecretary knew
 

little or nothing about it until the storm
 of public opinion 

began to m
ake itself felt. [5
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Secretary M
arshall's statem

ents brought sharp com
m

ent 

from
 T

hurm
an A

rnold. 

"T
he S

ecretary is now
 m

erely passing the buck to tw
o 

agencies outside the State D
epartm

ent," M
r. A

rnold said. 

"W
e still stick to one sim

ple request—
that the individuals 

be given a hearing in the A
m

erican w
ay or be allow

ed to 

resign." 
T

he w
heels of governm

ent began to m
ove—

backw
ards. 

O
n N

ovem
ber 8th the m

akeup of the new
 L

oyalty R
e-

view
 B

oard w
as announced. N

ineteen m
en and one w

om
an 

w
ere appointed to it. It w

as headed by S
eth W

. R
ichard-

son, A
ssistant A

ttorney G
eneral under form

er P
resident 

H
erbert H

oover and form
er attorney for the C

ongres-

sional C
om

m
ittee w

hich investigated P
earl H

arbor. 

T
he new

 B
oard, created under P

resident T
rum

an's E
x-

ecutive O
rder, could hear appeals on all cases of em

ployees 

dism
issed after O

ctober 1, 1947•  It w
as not at once certain 

w
hether it w

ould have jurisdiction over the cases of the 

seven, w
ho w

ere dism
issed prior to O

ctober 1st. 

M
r. R

ichardson and M
r. M

itchell, both outspoken op-

ponents of "w
itch-hunting," m

ade som
e things clear. 

T
hey said the C

ivil S
ervice C

om
m

ission w
ould have 

the right to hear the cases of the seven—
if they filed 

appeals. B
ut this hearing w

ould deal only w
ith their right 

to em
ploym

ent in non-sensitive agencies. It w
ould not 

m
eet the allegation that they w

ere security risks. 

T
hey said the C

om
m

ission w
ould ask the State D

epart-

m
ent for all docum

ents under its control. 
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T
hey said the C

om
m

ission w
ould ask the F

.B
.I. and 

other governm
ent investigating agencies for any addi-

tional docum
ents. 

M
r. M

itchell said that the C
ivil S

ervice C
om

m
ission, if 

it deem
ed it necessary, m

ight even ask the new
 L

oyalty 

R
eview

 B
oard to consider the cases of the seven, even 

though they arose before O
ctober B

t. 

M
ost im

portant of all—
and in direct conflict w

ith S
ec-

retary M
arshall's intim

ation that this couldn't be done—

it becam
e certain that the C

ivil S
ervice C

om
m

ission or 

the L
oyalty R

eview
 B

oard could obtain m
aterial devel-

oped by the F
.B

.I. F
or J. E

dgar H
oover said: 

"T
he F

ederal B
ureau of Investigation w

ill lend its full-

est co-operation to the C
ivil S

ervice C
om

m
ission and the 

L
oyalty R

eview
 B

oard. 

"T
his w

ill include m
aking available to the C

om
m

ission 

and to the R
eview

 B
oard the contents of its files w

here 

pertinent." 
T

hus one safeguard w
as established. 

M
r. R

ichardson announced others w
hen he told of the 

procedure the L
oyalty R

eview
 B

oard w
ould use. H

e said: 

1. A
n accused em

ployee w
ould first com

e before an 

agency loyalty board appointed by the head of his D
e-

partm
ent. 

z. H
e w

ould be served w
ith w

ritten notice of the na-

ture of the charges in sufficient detail to enable him
 to 

prepare his defense. 
3. If the agency board recom

m
ended his rem

oval, the 
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em
ployee w

ould be entitled to appeal to the head of his 

D
epartm

ent. 

4. If the D
epartm

ent head accepted his board's recom
-

m
en

d
atio

n
, th

e em
p
lo

y
ee co

u
ld

 ap
p
eal to

 th
e L

o
y
alty

 

R
eview

 B
oard. 

S. T
he L

oyalty R
eview

 B
oard, on com

pletion of its 

hearing, w
ould m

ake an appropriate recom
m

endation to 

the D
epartm

ent head. 

A
ll this—

and the m
any other provisions—

w
ould not 

p
rev

en
t "sen

sitiv
e" ag

en
cies fro

m
 g

ettin
g
 rid

 o
f u

n
-

w
anted em

ployees. U
nder the M

cC
arran rider they still 

had the pow
er to fire anybody. B

ut it did m
ean they could 

not dism
iss an em

ployee on grounds of being a bad se-

curity or loyalty risk w
ithout producing evidence to back 

up the charges and w
ithout giving him

 a chance to defend 

his nam
e. 

T
he actions of M

r. R
ichardson and M

r. M
itchell put 

the S
tate D

epartm
ent still further on the defensive in the 

cases of the seven w
ho had been given none of the pro-

tection now
 accorded to other em

ployees as a m
atter of 

right. 

S
ecretary M

arshall, his D
epartm

ent on the run, held 

another press conference on N
ovem

ber z zth. 

H
e w

as asked five questions. 

H
e w

as asked w
hether, in view

 of M
r. H

oover's state-

m
ent, the S

tate D
epartm

ent w
ould now

 m
ake available 

to the C
ivil S

ervice C
om

m
ission or the L

oyalty R
eview

 

B
oard the m

aterial it had obtained from
 the F

.B
.I. S

ec- 
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retary M
arshall replied that that w

ould be a m
atter be-

tw
een the F

.B
.I. and the other tw

o bodies. H
e rem

inded 

the questioner that he had not said that "all" the m
aterial 

not under the S
tate D

epartm
ent's control had com

e from
 

the F
.B

.I. 
D

id it com
e from

 A
rm

y or N
avy intelligence services? 

S
ecretary M

arshall did not answ
er. 

H
e w

as told that the L
oyalty R

eview
 B

oard appeared 

to have no jurisdiction over the cases of the seven, since 

th
ey

 o
ccu

rred
 b

efo
re th

e d
ate d

esig
n
ated

 fo
r b

o
ard

 

au
th

o
rity

. "W
e w

ill stu
d
y
 th

at m
atter," h

e said
. 

"Y
o
u
 m

ean
 th

ere w
ill b

e a reco
n
sid

eratio
n
 o

f th
ese 

cases?" 
S

ecretary M
arshall said no; that he m

erely m
eant he 

w
ould study them

. 
"D

o
 y

o
u
 ex

p
ect to

 talk
 p

erso
n
ally

 to
 th

e m
en

 w
h
o
 

w
ere dism

issed?" (T
his from

 a reporter w
ho knew

 that 

so
m

e o
f th

e sev
en

 h
ad

 co
m

p
lain

ed
 th

at th
ey

 h
ad

 b
een

 

unable to see the S
ecretary.) 

S
ecretary M

arshall said he had no com
m

ent. 

H
is statem

ents left things up in the air. 

N
ex

t d
ay

 th
e law

 firm
 ag

ain
 h

am
m

ered
 at th

e S
tate 

D
ep

artm
en

t fo
r failin

g
 to

 tak
e so

m
e d

efin
ite actio

n
. 

"R
em

ove this terrible stigm
a," the firm

 said. "T
he re-

sponsibility to provide a speedy and an adequate rem
edy 

is squarely upon the S
tate D

epartm
ent. 

"W
e are com

pletely at a loss to understand the reluc-

tance of the D
epartm

ent to grant this request. It is our 
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firm
 conviction that the principle here in issue is of fun-

dam
ental im

portance to this nation." 

T
he heat w

as really on! 

O
n
 N

o
v
em

b
er i4

th
 b

o
th

 P
resid

en
t T

ru
m

an
 an

d
 th

e 

S
tate D

epartm
ent had som

ething to say. 

P
resid

en
t T

ru
m

an
, at a p

ress co
n
feren

ce, said
 em

-

p
h
atically

 th
at n

o
 "w

itch
 h

u
n
t" w

o
u
ld

 b
e allo

w
ed

. H
e 

said
 th

at all p
erso

n
s su

sp
ected

 o
f d

islo
y
alty

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e 

g
iv

en
 w

ritten
 n

o
tice o

f th
e ch

arg
es in

 su
fficien

t d
etail 

to enable them
 to prepare a defense. H

e added: 

"In som
e unusual situations, security considerations 

m
ay not allow

 full disclosure of charges. I realize fully-

the stigm
a attached to a rem

oval for disloyalty. 

"A
ccordingly, I have ordered the agencies of the gov-

ernm
ent, except w

here a few
 agencies find it necessary 

to
 ex

ercise ex
trao

rd
in

ary
 p

o
w

ers g
ran

ted
 to

 th
em

 b
y
 

C
ongress, to give hearings to persons w

ho are charged 

w
ith disloyalty." 
A

 S
tate D

ep
artm

en
t p

ress attach
e said

 fo
r th

e first 

tim
e th

at th
e D

ep
artm

en
t h

o
p
ed

 th
e n

ew
 L

o
y
alty

 R
e-

view
 B

oard w
ould take appeal jurisdiction over the cases 

of the seven. H
e said—

and this w
as a com

plete reversal—

th
at th

e D
ep

artm
en

t w
o
u
ld

 m
ak

e av
ailab

le to
 th

e 

L
o
y
alty

 R
ev

iew
 B

o
ard

 
all 

m
aterial u

p
o
n
 w

h
ich

 th
e 

D
epartm

ent's action w
as based. H

e acted as if the S
tate 

D
ep

artm
en

t w
o
u
ld

 b
e v

ery
 h

ap
p
y
 in

d
eed

 to
 g

et th
is 

headache off its m
ind once and for all. 

B
ut the L

oyalty R
eview

 B
oard could not accept juris- 
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d
ictio

n
 in

 th
e cases o

f th
e sev

en
. It to

ld
 th

e S
tate D

e-

p
artm

en
t so

. It ex
p
lain

ed
 th

at its p
o
w

ers w
ere n

o
t 

retroactive to the date the seven w
ere dism

issed. 

T
h
at p

u
t it sq

u
arely

 u
p
 to

 th
e S

tate D
ep

artm
en

t to
 

stick
 to

 its g
u
n
s o

r to
 b

eat a retreat. 

T
he retreat—

it w
as, in fact, a rout—

cam
e on N

ovem
ber 

17th. 
F

ive m
onths after the seven had been dism

issed, and 

a little m
ore than tw

o w
eeks after the cases had been ex-

p
o
sed

 to
 p

u
b
lic v

iew
, th

e S
tate D

ep
artm

en
t su

d
d
en

ly
 

an
n
o
u
n
ced

 th
at th

e sev
en

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e allo

w
ed

 to
 resig

n
 

w
ithout prejudice "in order to avoid a possible injustice 

to
 th

em
." 

(It said nothing of the effects of that "possible injus- 

tice" on the individuals during the five m
onths they had 

suffered under the stigm
a placed upon them

 by dism
issal 

w
ithout hearing.) 
T

h
e S

tate D
ep

artm
en

t p
o
in

ted
 o

u
t th

at th
e L

o
y
alty

 

R
ev

iew
 B

o
ard

 co
u
ld

 n
o
t tak

e ju
risd

ictio
n
. T

h
e S

tate 

D
epartm

ent added: 
"In view

 of that determ
ination, the dism

issed em
ploy- 

ees have no w
ay to appeal the D

epartm
ent's findings in 

their cases. 
"S

even of the form
er em

ployees -have requested that 

they be perm
itted to resign if no appeal is possible. 

"Inasm
uch as the only rem

edy presently available to 

them
 (that of obtaining clearance for em

ploym
ent else-

w
h
ere in

 th
e F

ed
eral g

o
v
ern

m
en

t) is n
o
t effectiv

e b
e- 
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cause they do not intend to seek such em
ploym

ent, the 

D
ep

artm
en

t h
as co

n
clu

d
ed

 th
at, in

 o
rd

er to
 av

o
id

 a 

possible injustice to them
, they should be perm

itted to 

resign w
ithout prejudice. 

"F
urtherm

ore, in view
 of the great im

portance w
hich 

th
e D

ep
artm

en
t attach

es to
 th

e rig
h
t o

f ap
p
eal fo

r its 

em
p
lo

y
ees, it is tak

in
g
 all step

s to
 in

su
re th

at its em
-

p
lo

y
ees w

ill h
av

e th
e rig

h
t o

f ap
p
eal to

 th
e L

o
y
alty

 

R
ev

iew
 B

o
ard

 in
 th

e fu
tu

re." 

H
ere, th

en
, w

as co
m

p
lete v

icto
ry

—
a v

icto
ry

 w
o
n
 

ag
ain

st o
d
d
s b

y
 th

e p
o
w

er o
f th

e p
ress, th

e rad
io

 an
d
 

the people. 

T
h
ere w

as still an
 u

n
an

sw
ered

 q
u
estio

n
 p

ertain
in

g
 

to
 fu

tu
re cases. It w

as: "S
h
o
u
ld

 th
e L

o
y
alty

 R
ev

iew
 

B
oard reverse the decision of the S

tate D
epartm

ent in 

a secu
rity

 case, w
o
u
ld

 th
e S

tate D
ep

artm
en

t resto
re 

the em
ployee to his old job?" 

H
am

ilto
n
 R

o
b
in

so
n
 an

sw
ered

 fo
r th

e S
tate D

ep
art-

m
ent. H

e said: "T
he S

tate D
epartm

ent w
ill accept the 

recom
m

endation of the L
oyalty R

eview
 B

oard insofar 

as th
e em

p
lo

y
ee's lo

y
alty

 is co
n
cern

ed
, b

u
t reserv

es 

th
e rig

h
t to

 d
eterm

in
e fo

r itself w
h
eth

er o
r n

o
t, fo

r 

secu
rity

 reaso
n
s, th

e em
p
lo

y
ee is to

 co
n
tin

u
e in

 h
is 

old job." 

T
h
at w

as th
e stan

d
 m

o
st o

b
serv

ers b
eliev

ed
 sh

o
u
ld

 

h
av

e b
een

 tak
en

 in
 th

e first p
lace b

y
 th

e S
tate D

e-

partm
ent. 

L
iterally

 n
o
 o

n
e h

ad
 d

isp
u
ted

 th
e fact th

at th
e S

tate 
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D
ep

artm
en

t sh
o
u
ld

 b
e allo

w
ed

 to
 rid

 itself arb
itrarily

 

o
f em

p
lo

y
ees it b

eliev
ed

 it co
u
ld

 n
o
t tru

st. W
h
at w

as 

d
isp

u
ted

 w
as th

e rig
h
t o

f an
y
 g

o
v
ern

m
en

t ag
en

cy
 to

 

accuse an em
ployee of disloyalty, dism

iss him
 on such 

grave grounds and refuse him
 a chance to establish that 

h
e w

as a g
o
o
d
, tru

e A
m

erican
. 

It w
as n

o
t u

n
til D

ecem
b
er zo

, 1
9
4
7
, th

at th
e sev

en
 

em
ployees received D

epartm
ent letters w

hich accepted 

their resignation. T
he w

ords "w
ithout prejudice" w

ere 

conspicuous by their absence. 

T
h
e letters read

: 

"M
y d

e
a
r M

r.—
: 

"Y
o
u
r resig

n
atio

n
 fro

m
 th

e D
ep

artm
en

t o
f 

S
tate effective June 

2 3, 
1
9
4
7
, is h

ereb
y
 ac- 

cepted. 	
S

incerely yours, 
"A

R
C

H
 K

. JE
A

N
 

"C
hief, D

ivision of D
e-

p
artm

en
tal P

erso
n
-

nel." 

M
r. Jean

 w
as ask

ed
 w

h
y
 th

e w
o
rd

s "w
ith

o
u
t p

reju
-

d
ice" w

ere o
m

itted
 fro

m
 th

e n
ew

 letter. 

"Inadvertently, if anything," he said. 

"W
hat?" he w

as asked. 

"In
ad

v
erten

tly
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e th

e o
n
ly

 an
sw

er to
 th

at," 

he said. 
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"If th
ey

 req
u
est a letter w

ith
 th

at p
h
rase in

 it, w
ill 

they get it?" he w
as asked. 

"S
ure," he said. "T

hat w
as the announced intention." 

T
here w

ere still, of course, som
e unansw

ered ques-

tions about M
r. B

lank. H
ow

 did he fare? D
id the S

tate 

D
ep

artm
en

t's ch
arg

es "p
u
rsu

e h
im

 in
to

 p
riv

ate life"? 

W
as h

e ab
le to

 g
et a jo

b
? 

T
he best source on such queries w

as M
r. B

lank. 

H
e has put dow

n, in his ow
n w

ords, the story of the 

m
onths im

m
ediately after his dism

issal. 

H
is account reveals w

hat could happen to any F
ederal 

em
ployee discharged on such grounds. 

It is o
ffered

 h
ere in

 fu
ll b

ecau
se o

f th
e g

rim
 p

ictu
re 

of w
hat arbitrary dism

issal under such circum
stances can 

do to the heart and soul and livelihood of an individual. 

T
his is M

r. B
lank's ow

n story: 

"E
ver since June z3, 1947, w

hen I 'resigned' from
 the 

S
tate D

epartm
ent, I have faced the task of finding a job 

to support m
y w

ife and tw
o young children. T

o date, al-

m
ost eight m

onths later, I still find m
yself unem

ployed. 

"T
o say that these m

onths have been trying is an un-

derstatem
ent. D

uring the first four m
onths, before the 

dism
issal w

as changed to resignation, m
y interview

s for 

jobs centered chiefly around the reason for m
y dism

issal 

from
 the S

tate D
epartm

ent instead of m
y qualifications 

fo
r a jo

b
. H

en
ce I w

as co
n
tin

u
ally

 p
ressed

 to
 ex

p
lain

 

w
h
at I co

u
ld

 n
o
t ex

p
lain

—
w

h
y
 I w

as fired
. T

o
 m

o
st 

people to w
hom

 I spoke it w
as unconceivable that the 
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only by som
eone w

ho has sim
ilarly yearned anxiously 

and incessantly over a long period of tim
e. 

"In preparing to look for a job, I consciously thought 

o
f ev

ery
 p

o
ssib

le so
u
rce o

f ap
p
ro

ach
. A

cco
rd

in
g
ly

 I 

w
rote to m

y college professors, the college em
ploym

ent 

office, form
er business associates, friends, business per-

sons w
ho w

ere suggested to m
e, new

spaper advertise-

m
ents, public em

ploym
ent agencies, and the like. 

"T
o
w

ard
 th

e latter p
art o

f Ju
n
e, I v

isited
 an

 A
rm

y
 

officer w
ith w

hom
 I had w

orked in one of m
y govern-

m
ent jobs, w

hose brother is an im
portant official in one 

• 

of the country's leading advertising firm
s. I asked for an 

introduction to his brother, know
ing that his firm

 em
-

ployed persons w
ith m

y abilities. T
he A

rm
y officer w

as 

very frank in saying that, m
uch as he desired to send m

e 

to his brother, he considered it inadvisable since he knew
 

from
 experience that his brother's firm

 had previously 

refu
sed

 em
p
lo

y
m

en
t o

n
 th

e g
ro

u
n
d
s o

f p
reju

d
ice to

 

som
eone he had form

erly recom
m

ended. H
e felt certain 

th
at th

e sam
e p

reju
d
ice p

lu
s th

e circu
m

stan
ce o

f m
y
 

sep
aratio

n
 fro

m
 th

e S
tate D

ep
artm

en
t w

o
u
ld

 p
rev

en
t 

m
y getting a job w

ith that firm
. T

he m
atter w

as there-

fore dropped at this point. 
"E

arly in the sum
m

er of 1947, arm
ed w

ith letters of 

in
tro

d
u
ctio

n
 fro

m
 p

erso
n
s in

 "W
ash

in
g
to

n
, in

clu
d
in

g
 

S
tate D

epartm
ent officials, I w

ent to N
ew

 Y
ork to see 

am
ong others an executive of a large textile firm

. S
ince 

his firm
 already em

ployed an econom
ist, he sent m

e to 
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S
tate D

epartm
ent w

ould fire anyone so arbitrarily and 

ab
ru

p
tly

, w
ith

o
u
t a statem

en
t o

f ch
arg

es an
d
 w

ith
 n

o
 

o
p
p
o
rtu

n
ity

 to
 u

tter a w
o
rd

 in
 self-d

efen
se. T

h
is h

ad
 

to constitute m
y 'explanation' for having been dism

issed 

from
 the D

epartm
ent. 

"A
fter m

y
 clearan

ce, ev
en

 th
o
u
g
h
 I can

 n
o
w

 say
 I 

have resigned instead of having to say I w
as dism

issed, 

the shadow
 of the circum

stances of m
y resignation still 

p
u
rsu

es m
e in

 m
y
 q

u
est fo

r a liv
elih

o
o
d
. 

"D
uring the past eight m

onths I have seen very little 

o
f m

y
 fam

ily
. I co

u
ld

 n
o
t h

av
e lo

o
k
ed

 fo
r a jo

b
 m

o
re 

d
ilig

en
tly

. S
till stu

n
n
ed

 b
y
 th

e d
ism

issal n
o
tice, I left 

to
w

n
 im

m
ed

iately
 after Ju

n
e 2

3
rd

 to
 lo

o
k
 fo

r a jo
b
. I 

h
av

e b
een

 o
u
t o

f to
w

n
 p

ractically
 ev

ery
 w

eek
 sin

ce, 

spending only w
eek-ends at hom

e. E
ven during the sum

-

m
er, w

hen it w
as difficult to see people, I did not spend 

o
n
e co

n
secu

tiv
e w

eek
 w

ith
 m

y
 fam

ily
, in

 sp
ite o

f m
y
 

w
ife's exhortations to take a little rest. M

y older child is 

quite perplexed and disturbed at m
y erratic com

ings and 

g
o
in

g
s an

d
 d

esp
ite o

u
r effo

rts to
 sh

ield
 h

im
 fro

m
 th

e 

reality of m
y unem

ploym
ent, he is old enough to sense 

the anxiety and indignation w
e are experiencing. N

o one 

in the house can m
iss the eagerness w

ith w
hich w

e an-

sw
er th

e telep
h
o
n
e o

r th
e ex

p
ectan

cy
 w

ith
 w

h
ich

 th
e 

m
ailm

an is aw
aited in the hope that each m

essage m
ay at 

lo
n
g
 last b

rin
g
 n

ew
s o

f a jo
b
. S

o
 far th

e h
o
p
e h

as n
o
t 

m
aterialized and the let-dow

n feeling can be appreciated 
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the econom
ist for one of the w

ealthiest fam
ilies in the 

co
u
n
try

. A
lth

o
u
g
h
 th

is m
an

 ex
p
ressed

 sy
m

p
ath

y
, h

e 

stated candidly and categorically that under the circum
-

stances of m
y dism

issal from
 the S

tate D
epartm

ent, he 

w
ould not do anything for m

e. S
ubsequently, w

hen m
at-

ters w
ere cleared and I w

as perm
itted to resign, I again 

contacted him
, but nothing cam

e of the interview
. 

"D
uring the sum

m
er I saw

 quite a few
 people, num

-

bering about ten to fifteen per w
eek. M

ost of the tim
e 

in interview
s I found m

yself explaining w
hy I w

as look-

in
g
 fo

r a jo
b
 in

stead
 o

f b
ein

g
 ab

le to
 d

iscu
ss m

y
 jo

b
 

qualifications. B
y this tim

e m
y college professors w

ere 

taking an interest in m
e, but fall teaching jobs w

ere al-

ready filled. T
heir efforts on m

y behalf, therefore, w
ere 

to w
rite to the S

tate D
epartm

ent in an endeavor to un-

cover the nature and substance of the reason for m
y dis-

m
issal. 
"T

h
e D

ep
artm

en
t k

n
ew

 th
at I w

as try
in

g
 to

 g
et a 

teaching job as w
ell as a business connection and w

hen 

one of the professors at the U
niversity w

rote to the S
tate 

D
ep

artm
en

t req
u
estin

g
 th

at I b
e g

iv
en

 a h
earin

g
, h

e 

receiv
ed

 a m
o
st in

terestin
g
 rep

ly
. It stated

 th
at I h

ad
 

alread
y
 h

ad
 tw

o
 h

earin
g
s an

d
 th

at alth
o
u
g
h
 I d

id
 n

o
t 

k
n
o
w

 th
e sp

ecific ch
arg

es, I k
n
ew

 th
em

 in
 a g

en
eral 

w
ay. T

he letter ended by saying that the dism
issal did 

not involve any question of loyalty and did not render 

m
e in

elig
ib

le fo
r o

th
er g

o
v
ern

m
en

t em
p
lo

y
m

en
t. T

h
e 

professor confronted m
e w

ith the S
tate D

epartm
ent let- 
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ter an
d
 ask

ed
 m

e to
 ex

p
lain

 m
y
 statem

en
t th

at I h
ad

 

had no hearing w
hen the letter said I had had tw

o hear-

in
g
s. I ex

p
lain

ed
 to

 h
im

 to
 th

e b
est o

f m
y
 ab

ility
 th

e 

nature of the S
tate D

epartm
ent 'hearings.' A

nd w
hen the 

situation w
as finally exposed in the N

ew
 Y

ork H
erald 

T
ribune, the nature of those 'hearings' w

as disclosed in 

all its w
orthlessness. D

espite the fact that the professors 

w
ere w

illin
g
 to

 tak
e m

y
 w

o
rd

 fo
r th

e n
atu

re o
f th

o
se 

'hearings' it can w
ell be im

agined w
hat a b

lack
 clo

u
d
 

accom
panied m

e in m
y quest for a job. 

"In A
ugust, 1947, I saw

 th
e h

ead
 o

f an
 in

tern
atio

n
al 

econom
ic agency w

hom
 I had previously know

n. A
fter 

talk
in

g
 to

 h
im

, h
e in

d
icated

 h
e w

o
u
ld

 h
ire m

e o
n
 th

e 

b
asis o

f m
y
 ex

p
erien

ce alo
n
e. I w

as ab
o
u
t to

 tell h
im

 

of m
y special predicam

ent w
hen he told m

e, curiously 

enough, a story in w
hich the N

azis had involved a m
an 

in
 a secu

rity
 case. T

h
is serv

ed
 as th

e tran
sitio

n
 to

 m
y
 

p
articu

lar case, after w
h
ich

 h
e th

en
 stated

 th
at u

n
d
er 

th
ese circu

m
stan

ces h
e w

o
u
ld

 h
av

e to
 ch

eck
 w

ith
 th

e 

S
tate D

epartm
ent and other references before he could 

definitely hire m
e. W

hen in W
ashington, he w

ent per-

sonally to visit the persons I had w
orked w

ith on eco-

n
o
m

ic p
ro

b
lem

s in
 th

e S
tate D

ep
artm

en
t. D

esp
ite th

e 

highest recom
m

endations from
 m

y colleagues in the D
e-

partm
ent and from

 other sources, he felt he required a 

letter fro
m

 th
e D

ep
artm

en
t statin

g
 th

ere w
as n

o
 o

b
-

jectio
n
 to

 h
is h

irin
g
 m

e. T
h
e n

atu
re o

f th
e resp

o
n
se 
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from
 the adm

inistrative office of the D
epartm

ent w
as 

such that I w
as turned dow

n com
pletely. 

"M
y next substantial job lead cam

e through an intro-

d
u
ctio

n
 to

 o
n
e o

f th
e co

u
n
try

's larg
e tex

tile h
o
u
ses. I 

had several interview
s w

ith the vice president and com
p-

troller. T
hese interview

s w
ere concerned w

ith the role 

of an econom
ist in business. I spent a great deal of tim

e 

stu
d
y
in

g
 th

e in
d
u
stry

 an
d
 p

lan
n
in

g
 an

 o
u
tlin

e o
f th

e 

functions and usefulness of an econom
ist. T

he question 

o
f w

h
y
 I had left the S

tate D
epartm

ent did not arise, 

although I presum
ed they knew

 the story from
 the per-

son w
ho introduced m

e to the firm
. M

atters seem
ed to 

p
ro

g
ress in

 a v
ery

 satisfacto
ry

 m
an

n
er, an

d
 fin

ally
 in

 

O
ctober it w

as agreed that they w
ould consider m

e to 

w
o
rk

 o
n
 a sp

ecial p
ro

b
lem

 fo
r th

e firm
 w

ith
 a v

iew
 

tow
ard a perm

anent attachm
ent pending the successful 

outcom
e of the special assignm

ent. A
ll that rem

ained to 

be settled w
ere salary, hours, office help and other such 

conditions of em
ploym

ent, w
hen I w

as notified that the 

firm
 h

ad
 ch

an
g
ed

 its m
in

d
. 

I 
d
o
 n

o
t k

n
o
w

 w
h
at 

prom
pted the reversal. 

"B
y
 th

is tim
e m

y
 sav

in
g
s an

d
 an

n
u
al leav

e m
o
n
ey

 

w
ere exhausted and I applied for m

y retirem
ent fund. 

F
ortunately for m

e, the Jones B
ill had recently becom

e 

law
, p

erm
ittin

g
 p

erso
n
s w

ith
 less th

an
 ten

 y
ears' em

-

ploym
ent to take their m

oney from
 the F

ederal retire-

m
en

t sy
stem

 u
p
o
n
 leav

in
g
 th

e F
ed

eral g
o
v
ern

m
en

t. 

D
uring the interval betw

een applying for the pension 
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and receiving it, I lived on borrow
ed m

oney, w
hich I 

later repaid from
 the retirem

ent m
oney. 

"A
bout this tim

e I really began to feel stym
ied. T

he 

expense of traveling w
eekly from

 W
ashington to places 

of greater job opportunities began to be oppressive. I w
as 

(and still am
) torn betw

een bearing the expense of travel 

and the alternative of staying put in W
ashington w

here 

job opportunities for professionals outside the F
ederal 

governm
ent are practically nil. A

nother possibility is to 

m
o
v
e w

ith
 m

y
 fam

ily
 to

 so
m

e p
lace lik

e N
ew

 Y
o
rk

 

w
here advertisem

ents for professionals in the new
spapers 

are of m
uch greater frequency. T

he housing situation, 

how
ever, is such as to deter m

e from
 m

oving before I 

h
av

e fo
u
n
d
 a jo

b
. 

"W
h
en

 th
e P

resid
en

t's C
o
m

m
ittee o

n
 C

iv
il R

ig
h
ts 

p
u
b
lish

ed
 its rep

o
rt, it o

ccu
rred

 to
 m

e in
 v

iew
 o

f th
e 

nature of the report that the m
em

bers m
ight be appre-

ciative of m
y situation. A

ccordingly, I w
rote to a leading 

m
em

b
er o

f th
e co

m
m

ittee, tellin
g
 h

im
 o

f m
y
 circu

m
-

stances and enclosing a resum
e of m

y education and ex-

perience. S
everal w

eeks later I 
receiv

ed
 a rep

ly
 fro

m
 

his secretary noting receipt of m
y letter and stating m

y 

resum
e had been filed in the personnel office of his firm

. 

T
here the m

atter rests. 

"S
everal prospects seem

ed to bud during the fall of 

1947.1 w
as introduced to one of the district vice presi-

dents of a quasi-public banking institution. H
e w

as sym
-

pathetic to m
y plight but said he w

as unable to find an 
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opening for m
e. A

t about the sam
e tim

e, I received an 

urgent call to rush to N
ew

 Y
ork to m

eet som
eone w

ho 

m
ight have som

ething for m
e. I flew

 there, m
et a sm

all-

businessm
an, and after a few

 conversations he decided 

th
at m

y
 b

ack
g
ro

u
n
d
 w

as to
o
 b

ro
ad

 fo
r th

e ty
p
e o

f jo
b
 

he had. I lost another job opportunity w
ith a publishing 

h
o
u
se, at ab

o
u
t th

is tim
e, b

ecau
se, in

 th
is case, th

ey
 

thought the job requirem
ents w

ere beneath m
y skill and 

abilities. 
"D

uring this period, I w
as in touch w

ith m
em

bers of 

organizations of m
y ow

n religious background. N
o job 

resulted from
 them

, although one organization w
as very 

kind in perm
itting m

e to use its office facilities and sten-

ographic help. In the case of another one, its W
ashington 

representative, to w
hom

 I w
as introduced, told m

e that 

because of the sim
ilar religious backgrounds, the B

oard 

of T
rustees w

as interested in the cases of the seven per-

sons w
ho w

ere dism
issed from

 the S
tate D

epartm
ent and 

ex
p
ressed

 a d
esire to

 h
elp

 th
ese p

erso
n
s in

 a co
n
crete 

w
ay

 at an
 ex

ecu
tiv

e b
o
ard

 m
eetin

g
. T

h
is W

ash
in

g
to

n
 

representative said he w
ould contact the board, in view

 

of its expressed positive interest, and give them
 m

y back-

ground so that they could assist m
e in obtaining a job. 

N
othing resulted. 
"A

ll th
is tran

sp
ired

 b
efo

re th
e sep

aratio
n
 fro

m
 th

e 

S
tate D

epartm
ent becam

e a resignation. T
he S

tate D
e-

partm
ent finally reversed its position and perm

itted us 

to resign w
ithout prejudice. N

ow
, in N

ovem
ber, (947, I 
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could say in m
y job hunting that I had resigned, though 

it w
as still difficult to explain w

hy I resigned. 

"A
fter this clearance, a num

ber of prom
inent and in-

fluential persons becam
e interested in m

y case and tried 

to help m
e get a job. D

espite this, several leads that I 

had did not m
aterialize. 

"O
n
e d

ay
 in

 early
 D

ecem
b
er I received a telegram

 

stating I w
as one of several persons recom

m
ended for a 

job as an econom
ist for an agency of a large m

unicipal-

ity. D
uring the interview

, I fo
u
n
d
 th

at th
e jo

b
 w

as ex
-

actly
 w

h
at I w

an
ted

 an
d

 felt th
at m

y
 b

ack
g

ro
u

n
d

 in
 

experience and education w
as custom

-m
ade for the job. 

I w
as asked to furnish letters of recom

m
endation directly 

to the person in charge. T
hese I secured from

 prom
inent 

persons, including three form
er top W

ashington adm
in-

istrators and tw
o S

tate D
epartm

ent officers and others 

w
ith w

hom
 I w

o
rk

ed
 o

r h
ad

 in
 so

m
e w

ay
 b

een
 asso

-

ciated. S
om

e of the people sent m
e unsolicited carbon 

copies of the letters of recom
m

endation they had w
ritten 

fo
r m

e. It m
ay

 b
e o

f in
terest to

 illu
strate b

y
 th

ree ex
-

cerpts the kind of letters w
ritten by som

e w
ho w

ere m
y 

im
m

ediate superiors in the S
tate D

epartm
ent: 

" 'M
r. 

B
lan

k
 w

o
rk

ed
 w

ith
 m

e fro
m

 ap
p
ro

x
im

ately
 

June, 194.6, to June, 1947, in
 th

e D
ep

artm
en

t o
f S

tate. 

H
is position, w

hich w
as one of w

ide responsibility, in-

volved prim
arily (a) the laying out and supervision of 

difficult econom
ic analysis projects concerned w

ith the 

in
d
u
strial an

d
 eco

n
o
m

ic reco
v
ery

, an
d
 reco

n
stru

ctio
n
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and financial needs of E
uropean countries; and (b) w

ork 

as eco
n

o
m

ic ad
v
iser in

 relatio
n

 to
 th

e S
tate D

ep
art-

m
ent's program

s and policies of econom
ic aid to E

uro-

pean countries. 
" 'M

r. B
lank has unusual ability and did his job in an 

u
n
u
su

ally
 co

m
p
eten

t, en
erg

etic an
d
 creativ

e m
an

n
er. 

H
e w

o
rk

s w
ell w

ith
 p

eo
p
le o

f all k
in

d
s an

d
 h

as co
n
-

siderable facility in expressing him
self and getting ideas 

o
v
er to

 o
th

ers. H
is w

o
rk

 alw
ay

s sh
o
w

ed
 n

o
t o

n
ly

 th
e 

result of good theoretical and technical background but 

o
f co

n
sid

erab
le p

ractical sag
acity

 b
o
rn

 o
f w

id
e ex

p
e-

rience. 
" 'M

r. B
lan

k
 h

as b
een

 w
o
rk

in
g
 fairly

 d
irectly

 u
n
d
er 

m
y supervision for the past year, and I w

ould unhesitat-

ingly recom
m

end him
 for any position w

hich he him
self 

felt capable of handling. 
" 'I h

av
e fo

u
n
d
 M

r. B
lan

k
's w

o
rk

 to
 d

em
o
n
strate an

 

unusual ability. H
e not only has a good background of 

eco
n
o
m

ic th
eo

ry
 an

d
 h

isto
ry

, b
u
t, m

o
re im

p
o
rtan

t, h
e 

is able to use his achievem
ents in the theoretical field in 

actual practical everyday industrial econom
ic problem

s. 

H
e has had engineers on his staff, and as you m

ay know
, 

engineers often do not w
ork w

illingly for econom
ists. 

B
ut M

r. B
lank had far less difficulties than one w

ould 

norm
ally expect, and he succeeded in having people of 

different w
alks of life and backgrounds w

ork very suc-

cessfully together on solutions of rather com
plex prob-

lem
s. 
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" 'I am
 sure that if his assignm

ent in your departm
ent 

w
ould parallel the type of w

ork he has done w
ithin m

y 

know
ledge, he w

ill discharge those duties to your satis-

faction and gratification. In so far as I can visualize his 

function on your staff, this w
ould be the case, and I am

 

m
ore than usually happy to recom

m
end him

 to you.' " 

M
r. B

lank's story continues: 

"I m
ade a determ

ined effort to obtain this job w
ith the 

m
unicipality because I w

as so suited for it, and although 

I w
as to

ld
 I w

o
u
ld

 h
ear o

n
e w

ay
 o

r th
e o

th
er d

irectly
 

from
 the person in charge, to this day he has not com

-

m
unicated w

ith m
e. Indirectly, how

ever, I learned that 

I w
as to be disqualified on a technicality. U

pon hearing 

o
f th

is tech
n
icality

, I w
ro

te to
 th

e p
erso

n
 in

 ch
arg

e, 

stating m
y view

 that I did not feel the technicality barred 

m
e fro

m
 fav

o
rab

le co
n
sid

eratio
n
. A

 rep
ly

 w
as n

ev
er 

receiv
ed

. A
g
ain

 I am
 n

o
t su

re w
h
y
 I d

id
 n

o
t receiv

e 

this job. 
. "In another case, the econom

ics departm
ent of m

y col-

lege attem
pted very diligently to obtain for m

e the only 

decent teaching job that w
as available for the F

ebruary 

sem
ester. A

gain I lost out on a technicality w
hich, how

-

ever, had no relation to m
y S

tate D
epartm

ent experience, 

although I w
as very seriously considered. 

"C
oncurrently w

ith the above, since m
y clearance, I 

answ
ered new

spaper advertisem
ents, and visited em

ploy-

m
ent agencies, but nothing ever developed along these 

lines. 
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"O
n
 a S

u
n
d
ay

 m
o
rn

in
g
 in

 th
e m

id
d
le o

f Jan
u
ary

, 
1948, I received a telephone call asking m

e if I w
ould 

like a few
 days' w

ork, to begin im
m

ediately. N
aturally 

I accepted. T
he job, w

hich lasted four days and nights, 

w
as to prepare an econom

ic report for a prom
inent in-

dustrialist. T
his w

as the only em
ploym

ent I had in the 
eight m

onths after I left the S
tate D

epartm
ent. 

"A
t present a num

ber of persons have w
ritten to sev-

eral in
d

u
strial an

d
 m

erch
an

d
isin

g
 co

n
cern

s to
 in

q
u

ire 

about the possibility of their utilizing the services of an 

eco
n
o
m

ist. It h
as also

 o
ccu

rred
 to

 m
e to

 try
 to

 o
b
tain

 

funds to w
rite som

e articles on various econom
ic prob-

lem
s w

ith w
hich I am

 acquainted. 
"B

y
 n

o
w

 all m
y
 liq

u
id

 fu
n
d
s are ex

h
au

sted
. I 

have 

spent m
y savings, annual leave and pension funds. F

or-

tunately, w
hen I first cam

e to W
ashington, I bought the 

house I am
 now

 living in. I have recently m
ortgaged it 

to
 th

e h
ilt to

 o
b
tain

 th
e m

o
n
ey

 n
ecessary

 to
 feed

 m
y
 

fam
ily

. W
h

en
 th

e b
lo

w
 first fell, sev

eral p
erso

n
s v

ery
 

generously offered to lend m
e m

oney for an indefinite 

period. A
t that tim

e, how
ever, I w

anted to use m
y ow

n 

fu
n
d
s b

efo
re reso

rtin
g
 to

 b
o
rro

w
in

g
. W

h
en

 it b
ecam

e 

necessary to borrow
, how

ever, I discovered that the only 
source from

 w
hich I could borrow

 w
as to m

ortgage the 

house. A
lthough a few

 personal friends and our personal 

fam
ilies w

ould be m
ore than w

illing to give us all they 

have, they are in no position to support a fam
ily of four. 

"T
he above account of day-to-day job hunting is not 
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a co
m

p
lete p

ictu
re o

f w
h

at h
ap

p
en

s to
 a m

an
 o

u
t o

f 

w
o

rk
. T

h
e an

x
iety

, u
n

certain
ty

, ten
sio

n
 an

d
 su

sp
en

se 

that are borne every m
om

ent of every day telescope into 

a sev
ere b

u
rd

en
 o

v
er a p

ro
tracted

 p
erio

d
 o

f tim
e. T

h
e 

co
n
stan

t strain
 o

f w
o
rry

 o
v
er fin

an
cial in

secu
rity

 d
e-

velops short-tem
pers and im

patience, m
aking it difficult 

to w
ithstand the outburst of energy and noise so natural 

to children. T
hey therefore becom

e at tim
es the unfair 

outlet for their parents' anxiety. 
"T

o all this m
ust be added m

y realization that I w
as 

unjustly deprived of m
y job, a job w

hich I thoroughly 

enjoyed and in w
hich I w

as doing exceedingly w
ell. I 

have been very m
uch heartened, how

ever, by the w
ide-

spread expressions of indignation at the S
tate D

epart-

m
ent's action, the public pressure w

hich finally forced 

the reversal from
 dism

issal to resignation and the num
er-

ous personal m
essages of sym

pathy and expressions of 

confidence in m
y character and ability. T

his has been a 

fight on tw
o fronts—

one, to get cleared, w
hich w

as ac-

com
plished w

hen the S
tate D

epartm
ent reversed itself; 

th
e o

th
er, to

 fin
d

 a jo
b

 in
 m

y
 o

w
n

 field
 to

 su
p

p
o

rt m
y

 

fam
ily. I am

 confident that I shall be successful in the 

second as I w
as in the first." 

T
here w

as a happy ending. E
arly in 1948 M

r. B
lank 

got a post in w
hich he could m

ake a new
 beginning. 

T
he truncated justice finally w

on for M
r. B

lank and 

his fellow
 "risks" w

as not, of course, to end the hunt. 
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A
s th

e p
u

rsu
it co

n
tin

u
ed

 th
e n

atio
n

 w
as g

iv
en

 a 
dram

atic, if ironic, dem
onstration of how

 far it m
ight 

go. T
he dem

onstration cam
e exactly eight m

onths and 
seventeen days after M

r. B
lank got his perem

ptory notice 
on orders from

 H
am

ilton R
obinson. T

his tim
e there 

w
ere charges, fuzzy and synthetic—

but charges w
hich 

could be m
et and answ

ered. T
his tim

e the accused w
as 

none other than H
am

ilton R
obinson him

self! 
R

obinson, scion of an old and fine fam
ily, a ten-year 

m
em

b
er o

f th
e N

ew
 Y

o
rk

 R
ep

u
b
lican

 C
lu

b
, a T

aft 
S

chool, P
rinceton, O

xford and Y
ale L

aw
 S

chool m
an, 

w
as not, to be sure, charged by the D

epartm
ent w

hose 
chief purge officer he w

as. T
he dem

and that he be purged 
cam

e from
 a m

em
ber of C

ongress, just as had the original 
cry for scalps. T

he reason: R
epresentative F

red E
. B

us-
bey, R

epublican, of Illinois, w
as dissatisfied w

ith the new
 

caution show
n by R

obinson in cleaning out the D
epart-

m
ent. B

usbey learned that R
obinson had an allegedly 

leftist second cousin. R
obinson's scalp w

as called for. 
T

he protests raised in N
ovem

ber against the D
epart-

m
ent's disregard for hum

an and civil rights now
 w

ere 
joined by strong new

 voices. T
he new

 tones, strangely, 
em

anated from
 the S

tate D
epartm

ent. T
o the clam

or of 
the press, radio and the people w

ere added the strong 
voices of Secretary M

arshall and A
ssistant Secretary John 

P
eurifoy. 
In M

arch an echo of the accusations directed at them
 

in N
ovem

ber cam
e from

 the S
tate D

epartm
ent itself. In- 
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dignant at the attack on his key subordinate, R
obinson, 

M
arshall dem

anded "fairness and decency." H
e affirm

ed 
now

 that, in probing loyalty, care m
ust be taken to "avoid 

action based on spiteful, unsupported or irresponsible 
allegations." 

P
eurifoy, too, had seen the light. H

e denounced the 
open season on "character assassination" and "gossip m

on-
gering." 

"I am
 also, quite frankly, disturbed," P

eurifoy told 
the H

ouse suh-com
m

ittee investigating M
r. R

obinson's 
loyalty and qualifications, "by the present tendency to 
extend the highly questionable theory of 'guilt by asso-
ciation' to lengths that am

ount to a travesty of the tradi-
tional A

m
erican justice." 

W
hen the hunters becam

e the hunted, the cycle w
as 

com
pleted. M

r. R
obinson, w

ho had refused to give M
r. 

B
lank the slightest hint of the allegations against him

, 
w

ent before the sub-com
m

ittee. H
e, how

ever, dem
anded 

and w
as given a full hearing. L

ike M
r. B

lank he insisted 
that the charges be openly stated. U

nlike M
r. B

lank, his 
request w

as acceded to w
ithout hesitation. 

N
ot even M

r. R
obinson could m

iss the irony of the 
scene. H

e had an F.B
.I. report on M

r. B
lank. R

epresenta-
tive B

usbey had an F
.B

.I. report on M
r. R

obinson. S
o 

far as w
as ever learned there w

as no evidence that M
r. 

B
lank w

as either disloyal or any of the softer hues of red. 
M

r. B
lank w

as nevertheless sum
m

arily discharged, and 
the reason w

as never divulged. M
r. R

obinson's discharge 
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t 
w

as dem
anded, and the reason w

as he had a second 
cousin. 

M
r. B

lank had com
plained to M

r. R
obinson: "I don't 

know
 w

hether you gentlem
en realize w

hat you have 
done to m

e—
com

pletely blackballed m
e from

 earning a 
living in the future. I don't know

 w
here to turn." 

M
r. R

obinson had replied: "I think you can be assured 
that the D

epartm
ent w

as not unaw
are of those" aspects of 

it. W
hen it cam

e R
obinson's turn, he and Peurifoy irately 

fought the im
plications and charges leveled by R

epre-
sentative B

ushey. 
R

epresentative B
usbey replied on the floor of the 

H
ouse: "M

r. R
obinson, as w

ell as M
r. P

eurifoy, seem
s 

to be laboring under the im
pression that this is an attack 

on the personal reputation and character of M
r. R

obin-
son. . . . N

othing is further from
 the truth." 

B
ut the sharpest parallel and yet the greatest difference 

betw
een the B

lank and R
obinson cases w

as in the m
anner 

and latitude w
ith w

hich the tw
o m

en w
ere able to de-

m
and the charges. 
M

r. B
lank hum

bly w
ent before M

r. R
obinson and his 

three associates for a secret session. T
old to m

ake a state-
m

ent, he replied: "I am
 com

pletely bew
ildered by w

hat 
it is ab

o
u
t . • . I really frankly do not know

 w
hat to 

say, since I don't know
 w

hat the charges are. . . ." lie 
got no help from

 his exam
iners. 

W
ith little delay, M

r. R
obinson got an open hearing 
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before the H
ouse sub-com

m
ittee. F

lanked by his chief, 
P

eurifoy, R
obinson dem

anded: "L
et us start out w

ith 
w

hat the charge is. W
hat is the charge? Y

ou m
ade a 

charge, M
r. B

usbey, in w
hich you said there w

ere certain 
facts know

n to m
y superiors, because of w

hich I should 
have been rem

oved from
 m

y office m
onths ago. . . . I 

think, in all fairness, M
r. C

hairm
an, it w

ould be a good 
thing to let M

r. B
ushey com

e out w
ith everything he has 

instead of dragging out the business from
 one tim

e to an-
other. If he has any m

ore let us have him
 say it now

." 
M

r. R
obinson's request w

as m
et prom

ptly-. T
he result: 

R
epresentative B

ushey produced his inform
ation. T

he 
sub-com

m
ittee chairm

an, R
epresentative J. E

dgar C
heno-

w
eth, R

epublican, of C
olorado, listened tolerantly but 

im
patiently to the B

usbey dossier on M
r. R

obinson. W
hen 

it w
as over, R

epresentative C
henow

eth closed the hear-
ings and dropped the m

atter. R
epresentative B

usbey com
-

plained on the H
ouse floor about this abrupt ending. 

M
r. R

obinson w
ent back to his w

ork of checking the 
loyalty and security of the S

tate D
epartm

ent's 
2

0
,0

0
0

 

em
ployees. It w

as a safe assum
ption that the rights of the 

ao,000, so far as he had anything to do w
ith them

, w
ould 

be respected and defended in the future. 
B

ut it w
as too m

uch to expect that M
r. R

obinson w
ould 

be perm
itted to continue his ow

n hunt w
ithout harassm

ent 
by the C

ongressional huntsm
en. It w

as only a m
atter of 

tim
e before M

r. R
obinson gave up. H

e subm
itted his 

resignation and it w
as accepted. 
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